

11/3/2016

Page 1

DETROIT BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS

EVENING COMMUNITY MEETING

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 3, 2016 3:00 p.m.

DETROIT PUBLIC SAFETY HEADQUARTERS

1301 THIRD AVENUE, SUITE 767

DETROIT, MICHIGAN 48210

1 COMMISSIONERS:
2 WILLIE BELL, Chairperson (Dist. 4)
3 RICARDO R. MOORE, Vice-Chairperson (Dist. 7)
4 WILLIE E. BURTON, Commissioner (Dist. 5)
5 LISA CARTER, Commissioner (Dist. 6)
6 REGINALD CRAWFORD, Commissioner (Dist. 3)
7 RICHARD SHELBY, Commissioner (Dist. 1)
8 EVA GARZA DEWAELSCHÉ, Commissioner Appointed
9 DERRICK SANDERS, Commissioner Appointed
10 BISHOP EDGAR VANN, Commissioner Appointed (Dist. 2)

11

12 GREGORY HICKS, Secretary to the Board

13

14

15

16

17

REPRESENTING OFFICE OF THE CHIEF OF POLICE:

18

ASSISTANT CHIEF STEVEN DOLUNT

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

1 COMMISSIONER BELL: I am Willie Bell the Chair of
2 District 4. We're going to call the meeting to order and
3 ask our very own Bishop Vann for an invocation, please.

4 (Invocation given)

5 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, Commissioner Vann.
6 And I'm going to start with my right, Introduction of our
7 commissioner with Commissioner Sanders.

8 COMMISSIONER SANDERS: Commissioner Sanders at
9 large.

10 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you sir. To my left
11 now.

12 COMMISSIONER SHELBY: Commissioner Shelby.

13 COMMISSIONER VANN: Commissioner Edgar Vann of
14 District 2.

15 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Commissioner Crawford,
16 District 3.

17 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Commissioner Ricardo Moore,
18 District 7, Carter Vice Chairman.

19 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Commissioner Eva Garza
20 Dewaelsche.

21 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you. Do we have a
22 quorum, sir?

23 SECRETARY HICKS: Mr. Chair, you have a quorum.

24 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you. As we move
25 forward I'm going to ask the commissioner to approve the

1 agenda for November 3, 2016.

2 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: So moved.

3 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Support.

4 COMMISSIONER BELL: It's been properly moved and
5 supported. Questions? Discussion? Those in favor aye.

6 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

7 COMMISSIONER BELL: The next item of business
8 will be approval of the October 27, 2016 minutes.

9 COMMISSIONER SANDERS: I move the adoption,
10 Mr. Chair.

11 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Support.

12 COMMISSIONER BELL: It's been properly moved and
13 second. Discussion? Those in favor aye.

14 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

15 COMMISSIONER BELL: Those opposed? Motion
16 carried.

17 The next item of business would be me, Chairman
18 Report.

19 I just want to say that -- and we'll probably
20 hear more specifics in reference to the chief
21 representative about the Angel Night; but it was really a
22 low profile activities for three nights. I had the
23 opportunity to travel from the east to the west. I said to
24 the westside.

25 COMMISSIONER VANN: You went to the westside?

1 COMMISSIONER BELL: To the westside. And
2 Mr. Hicks' confirmation. We also interacted with our Vice
3 Chair on one night, Ricardo Moore. And we had opportunity
4 to visit the Twelfth Precinct on my side with Commissioner
5 Moore reporting out in terms of his visit. Any others too.
6 Five and then Nine naturally on the eastside of Detroit.
7 So the numbers are in. I guess we will hear more about
8 that. But we also -- one of the highlights was visiting
9 the command post on Lyndon for to witness all activities of
10 all entities coming together from the federal level, the
11 state level, the county level and the city level. And that
12 was on Monday night. And they really didn't have nothing
13 to report. So that was good news citywide. So it really
14 was a wholesome type weekend.

15 And prior to that, on Friday -- was that last
16 Friday we had the officer graduation?

17 COMMISSIONER SANDERS: Yes.

18 COMMISSIONER BELL: Okay. You can see it's been
19 so busy this weekend. It took place Friday at -- not
20 Ebenezer.

21 COMMISSIONER SANDERS: Greater Grace.

22 COMMISSIONER BELL: Greater Grace. Those are two
23 prominent churches. I know the eastside churches very
24 well. I shouldn't confuse them.

25 COMMISSIONER VANN: Don't get it twisted.

1 COMMISSIONER BELL: Exactly. So we graduated 40
2 officer from two classes. The ceremony was outstanding. I
3 appreciate the commissioners who attended the ceremony;
4 commissioner Crawford, Commissioner Sanders and
5 commissioner --

6 COMMISSIONER SANDERS: Brooks.

7 COMMISSIONER BELL: -- Brooks. It was a great --
8 a little long, but it was worthwhile in term of seeing the
9 young people. I know Director Gail is proud to see. And
10 there was at least 30 some officers who are going to be the
11 next coming class. You can probably report on out that
12 will witness all this. And it's good to see all the
13 families and loved ones. And what really made my day; when
14 I looked out in the audience and I witnessed in my
15 interacting Ernest Travis, who was my TAC officer, in the
16 house along with Jako (Phonetic) Hughes. Legendary Jako
17 Hughes and Mack Douglas, former commanders. And when you
18 look out and see your TAC officer from '71 -- and his son
19 was graduating from the academy. So it was really a great
20 day. I really felt proud to represent the Board of Police
21 Commission to make some few remarks as always. I was not
22 long, contrary to.

23 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Us westsiders.

24 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes. Okay. Looks like I got
25 the thumbs up for Director Gail. So I just see that -- and

1 unfortunate, we lost an outstanding officer. We will hear
2 more about that in terms of -- from Commissioner Moore in
3 reference to resolution and perhaps remarks. But basically
4 we had an opportunity to visit his commanding officer,
5 Johnny Thomas, at the Twelfth Precinct; interact with some
6 other officers. And they're going through, you know, the
7 bereavement and counseling and consoling. So I think
8 everything is in order. So as we move forward to -- the
9 funeral arrangement is going to be this coming Monday at
10 that great historic church on the eastside of Detroit that
11 Pastor Bishop Vann pastors at. That would be what Church?

12 COMMISSIONERS: Second Ebenezer.

13 COMMISSIONER BELL: Second Ebenezer at 12:00. So
14 those arrangements have been circulated throughout the
15 department, throughout the community. And we just want to
16 embrace the family. And I have already received support
17 from the commissioner. So we're going to hopefully
18 interact with the family prior to. And I think that's the
19 proper thing to do. So I just want to thank you for coming
20 out this afternoon.

21 As we move forward on the agenda the next item
22 would be for Mr. Hicks to introduce the staff.

23 SECRETARY HICKS: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

24 Mr. Chair, I wanted to just introduce, first of
25 all, a new staff person who is joining us. This is a

1 person who will serve in the position of executive manager
2 and will begin a fairly ambitious tract in order for us to
3 wrap our hands -- our arms around the fiscal review that an
4 organization like this should be undertaking. And that
5 person is Gertrude Johnson who is sitting over here.

6 Gertrude, if I could have you stand.

7 COMMISSIONER BELL: Welcome.

8 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Thank you very much.

9 MS. JOHNSON: You're welcome.

10 SECRETARY HICKS: In addition to that, of course
11 Robert Brown is here sitting here. I'm going to come back
12 to HR Director Oxendine, because you actually have that
13 report that you're making today.

14 I do want to indicate that media service is
15 taping today, and that Hanson Court Reporting Services is
16 doing the transcription work for today.

17 And then, of course, Chief Investigator Drake who
18 I want to go to because she in turn also introduces
19 individuals who are on her staff.

20 CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: For the record, Chief
21 Investigator Pamela Davis Drake. With me is supervising
22 investigator Abdula Nelson. And I believe that's it.

23 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you. Good to see,
24 Mr. Nelson.

25 SECRETARY HICKS: And again, Gail Oxendine, who

1 is sitting in the front, is also prepared to make her HR
2 report.

3 COMMISSIONER BELL: Okay. I see Commissioner
4 Burton is entering the room. Do we have any other excused
5 absence or any other notification from any other
6 commissioners?

7 SECRETARY HICKS: Yes. Ms. Brooks had indicated
8 that she would be unable to make today's meeting.

9 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, sir. It's good to
10 see Commissioner Burton.

11 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Thank you Mr. Chair.

12 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, sir. And what
13 district are you from?

14 COMMISSIONER BURTON: District five.

15 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you. Thank you for
16 your attendance today.

17 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Excuse me. Mr. Chair,
18 would it be appropriate for Ms. Johnson to come and just
19 say a little something?

20 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes. Ms. Johnson, if you
21 want to say hello.

22 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: And we can formerly
23 welcome her into the commission.

24 COMMISSIONER BELL: We can do that. And we give
25 you honors.

1 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Thank you.

2 SECRETARY HICKS: Come to the mic.

3 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you for bringing that
4 to me attention.

5 MS. JOHNSON: Good afternoon. It's my pleasure
6 to be here. I have an extensive background in accounting
7 and auditing and I'm hoping --

8 COMMISSIONER BELL: Could you speak in the --

9 MS. JOHNSON: I'm sorry. In the mic?

10 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, ma'am.

11 MS. JOHNSON: Is that a little Bert better? It's
12 my pleasure to be here. And I have a background in solid
13 financial accounting. I graduated from the University of
14 Detroit. So I'm here to help you wrap your arms around
15 your financial matters, I hope.

16 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you.

17 MS. JOHNSON: That's the intent.

18 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you.

19 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Thank you.

20 COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioner Crawford, you
21 want to make some other remarks.

22 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: I just want to say thank
23 you, and we welcome you aboard on this commission. Well on
24 behalf of myself and also the commission.

25 MS. JOHNSON: Thank you.

1 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: We're looking forward to
2 working with you.

3 COMMISSIONER BELL: This is day what now?

4 MS. JOHNSON: I arrived Monday.

5 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you.

6 COMMISSIONER SANDERS: We will be working together
7 by me being on one of the budgets.

8 MS. JOHNSON: Oh, okay.

9 COMMISSIONER SANDERS: So we'll have a close
10 encounter on the budget.

11 MS. JOHNSON: Okay. I'm looking forward to it.

12 SECRETARY HICKS: Commissioner, if you will.

13 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes.

14 SECRETARY HICKS: I should indicate that tomorrow
15 will begin that close encounter. We have a meeting
16 scheduled with the budget chair for tomorrow. And our
17 intent there was to make a more comprehensive introduction;
18 outline some of the work that Ms. Johnson will be involved
19 in. And also to indicate to the rest of the body here, in
20 addition to a degree in accounting Ms. Johnson is also a
21 certified public accountant, which is a distinction that
22 not every accountant achieves. And I think that would be
23 not only the experience that she has but also the auditing
24 background that will help us a great deal as we move around
25 doing our oversight, or meeting our oversight

1 responsibility.

2 COMMISSIONER BELL: That's an awesome
3 responsibility. As so as I mentioned to her earlier that
4 your timing is great. We appreciate that. So I know
5 Mr. Sanders is looking forward to interacting, because he's
6 been dealing with the budget issue in the last two years.
7 We should be more prepared as we go forward. Because
8 that's one of our awesome responsibilities of this board to
9 address the budget issue.

10 SECRETARY HICKS: Mr. Chair, one other thing. I
11 hate that --

12 COMMISSIONER BELL: No problem.

13 SECRETARY HICKS: -- to do this. But in our
14 discussions with DPD finance, they've indicated -- and this
15 is one of the reasons why we wanted to make sure that we
16 had Ms. Johnson in place. They've indicated that their
17 expectation is to deliver to the commission on November
18 22nd the department's budget. So largely what we're trying
19 to do with Ms. Johnson's assistance is to prepare for that
20 budget and to put processes in place so that we will do a
21 relatively comprehensive review of that budget. So the
22 timing of that was critical for us. And I do want to -- at
23 some point we will -- as we talk this through with the
24 budget committee chair and the budget committee we're going
25 to try to come up with some type of approach and maybe a

1 schedule for budgetary hearings of that sort. Because this
2 will be one of the first years in which you will actually
3 be beginning to be in the position to take a more
4 comprehensive look at the department's budget.

5 COMMISSIONER BELL: Looking forward to that type
6 of interaction.

7 SECRETARY HICKS: And I was also handed a note
8 again -- sorry -- that Conrad Mallett, Commissioner
9 Mallett, has indicated that he will be unable to attend the
10 meeting today.

11 COMMISSIONER BELL: Okay.

12 SECRETARY HICKS: So he has an excuse.

13 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you. Appreciate the
14 update.

15 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, sir, I just have a
16 different question here.

17 Mr. Hicks, where are we on the search for an
18 attorney for the board?

19 SECRETARY HICKS: Two things. One, we
20 transmitted a letter to corporation counsel asking
21 corporation counsel to, number one, to assign a person
22 temporarily to the commission here who would attend our
23 meetings and advise the commission; and that we also had an
24 opportunity to submit research products if we need it in
25 order to do that. We have not heard formerly back from

1 corporation counsel in connection with that. Although the
2 Chair has had some contact with corporation counsel, and
3 corporation counsel has acknowledged, one, receipt of the
4 letter and that he was working on this. But we have not
5 formerly heard anything on that.

6 We also then have obtained from HR what we
7 understood to be the latest job description that's
8 available for this position. And it's not squarely this
9 position, but at least the position that related to
10 attorneys inside of the city and so forth. What we're
11 trying to do is essentially come up with a approach. And
12 unlike the delegated authority that you've already given me
13 to staff up our vacancies and implement the -- I'm blanking
14 on the word -- but the changes in the structure of our
15 agency; what I want to do in this particular instance is to
16 actually formerly get the support in the form of a small
17 committee from -- directly composed of members of the
18 commission to select and interview a potential attorney for
19 the commission. In this instance what's most important to
20 me is that when you look at it, the vast majority of the
21 interaction with that person is going to be directly with
22 the commission. And so the knowledge base and the fit is
23 going to have to be something in which you all, more than
24 our staff, and myself in particular, you have to be
25 comfortable with that. So unlike the other delegated staff

1 in which you have authorized me to hold, in this one I'm
2 looking at a more comprehensive approach involving
3 individuals from the commission. And that is going to --
4 when we do that, that's going to put us back into a
5 challenge in terms of just arranging meetings and things
6 like that, because all of the members of the commission
7 have fairly complicated meetings scheduled. And that was
8 the basis in which we originally approached corporation
9 counsel to ask for a temporary person to kind of fill in at
10 that time. Our expectations, even with the direct board
11 participation is that we should be looking at something
12 being able to bring a final person forward probably by the
13 end of the year.

14 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Thank you. One last
15 comment here through the Chair. I do understand, you know,
16 we need an attorney like yesterday or a week. But
17 corporation counsel -- and this is no -- with all due
18 respect to them, it's like bringing a fox of an attorney
19 into the hen house. That's my opinion.

20 COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioner Crawford, may I
21 say? It's just a temporary issue dealing with the legal --
22 you know, if we have some issues. So far we're doing okay.
23 But the work of the attorney, the Board is really working
24 through the committee. So we understand your concern.

25 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes.

1 COMMISSIONER BELL: It's just a temporary stopgap
2 to address any issues we might have legally etc., etc. But
3 right now there's none on the table. But it's just
4 something that we just wanted to make sure we have
5 somebody, you know, readily available in case we need them.
6 And as you well know, attorneys are honorable people; so we
7 have to rely on their profession.

8 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: I understand.

9 COMMISSIONER BELL: I understand what you're
10 saying.

11 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Through the Chair.

12 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, sir.

13 COMMISSIONER MOORE: I think a more
14 administrative issue would be the privilege that comes
15 along with that; the attorney/client privilege. So going
16 back to what Commissioner Crawford was saying, I think it's
17 more of a stronger issue than just a side bar. It's
18 privileges also.

19 COMMISSIONER BELL: I'll take that under serious
20 consideration.

21 COMMISSIONER MOORE: From the westsider.

22 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, from the westsider.
23 From the commissioner too. Both commissioners. I will
24 take that under advisement.

25 SECRETARY HICKS: Commissioner --

1 COMMISSIONER BELL: But I don't see --

2 SECRETARY HICKS: -- if I can just add one more
3 thing.

4 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, sir.

5 SECRETARY HICKS: While we're at this point in
6 terms of the discussion.

7 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, sir.

8 SECRETARY HICKS: The privilege would attach as
9 well if the person was from the law department and on
10 assignment to you all. So you would have that. Okay? But
11 in addition to that, part of the workload, we did go back
12 and collect up all of the pending appeals that was under --
13 within the office of the attorney to the board. We
14 identified about fifteen or sixteen appeals. We have now
15 conducted a review of those appeals. We have then with the
16 working with the personnel commission -- committee and
17 Commissioner Dewaelsche, who has agreed for us to
18 essentially do the summaries. Last week we passed out
19 copies of those summaries to the individuals who are on the
20 personnel committee. And our expectation within probably
21 the next few days is to hear back from members of the
22 personnel committee. And what we're asking him to do is to
23 review the material and also to vote whether or not you are
24 prepared to grant an appeal to the individuals who are
25 requesting an appeal. If you decide not to grant an appeal

1 we'll -- essentially the status quo would default to the
2 ruling by the department. So that is -- we think that
3 we're also looking around the office and trying to cover
4 ourselves in terms of workload, as well as the other kinds
5 of assignments in which the attorney to the board would
6 have.

7 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, sir. And I just
8 want to say the attorney to the board search and resume and
9 all that will be worked up by the personnel committee.
10 They will weigh in on that to pick the time and day they
11 will have to involve themselves in that whole process.

12 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: That's correct.

13 COMMISSIONER BELL: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Hicks
14 and commissioner for your comments with attorney privilege
15 and confidentiality. We'll keep all that in mind.

16 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Yes, sir.

17 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Just legal ease.

18 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes. Before we turn the mic
19 over to Deputy Chief Dolunt sitting in for Chief Craig
20 could we have a moment of silence for officer Myron
21 Jarrett, please.

22 (Moment of silence observed)

23 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you. Deputy Chief.

24 I'm sorry, let's go back to -- Deputy chief, you
25 don't have the floor at this time. Let me put my glasses

1 on. I think Director -- HR report is next.

2 Thank you Commissioner Shelby.

3 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: Thank you, sir. Good
4 afternoon Board. For the record Gail Oxendine, director of
5 Police Personnel.

6 COMMISSIONERS: Good afternoon.

7 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: So in your booklets for the
8 month of October, Reporting Information, we have a total of
9 2,354 sworn positions filled with 208 vacancies. Civilians
10 509 with 52 vacancies. Total vacancies is 260 for both
11 sworn and civilian.

12 In terms of recruiting numbers for this fiscal
13 year we've had 1,861 applicants apply. We have 367 that
14 are awaiting M-codes. We're continuing to look at that
15 number and do one maybe final push to see if those that
16 have not responded to us, if they are still actually
17 interested in the position. We have 100 that are currently
18 in process. 530 lack interest for follow-up. 1,138
19 temporarily disqualified. 243 permanently disqualified.
20 And we hired 34 that started on October 31st, this past
21 Monday.

22 M-codes written: The written and the physical
23 agility test; we are still working with AC White's staff
24 and also the Trained Academy staff to establish the
25 preparatory program so that we can have more success for

1 people that are taking the M-codes.

2 As you can see, we do have a problem with people
3 showing up, appearing as they've been scheduled, even
4 though we are following up with them just prior to the
5 scheduling -- their schedule date. And then those that
6 appear their pass rate is low. We're particularly
7 concerned about the physical agility. As you can see 159
8 were scheduled. 102 appeared and 50 just passed. So
9 that's a very low number as opposed to those that were
10 scheduled.

11 With respect to the new hires in October. As I
12 mentioned, 34 sworn were hired, 7 civilians, for a total of
13 41.

14 Moving to page two, you have your residency
15 information. Those numbers continue to be pretty
16 consistent with -- let's see. Total sworn Detroit
17 residents 635. Total civilian Detroit residents 319.
18 Total sworn nonresidents 1,719. And total civilian
19 nonresidents 193.

20 Of those that were hired in the month of October;
21 we have four civilian new hires that are Detroit residents
22 and 11 sworn new hires that are Detroit residents.

23 Our student internship program is continuing. We
24 -- the program will end with a coffee and cake on
25 Wednesday, December 14. Probably about 1:00. But

1 invitations will be forwarded to every commissioner.

2 Please come out and join us.

3 Attrition: Wasn't really a good month for
4 attrition. It was civilians in particular which was a
5 little odd. Sworn we lost 16. Civilians 20. For a total
6 of 36. So we're doing some follow-up with the commands
7 that would be -- had the people that were probationarily
8 discharged to find ut what the issues were and see if
9 there's something we can do about it to make sure we don't
10 have that happen again.

11 You have your leave of absence. They're
12 restricted duty numbers. In terms of special projects; we
13 have an honor board process improvement effort that's
14 currently underway. As when I reported last month with our
15 state survey, recognition was number four on the list of
16 most important things to employees through the department.
17 And so we found that our honor board process has some gaps
18 and some delays. So we pretty much caught up on our
19 backlog. In my office any way. And so those certificates
20 and accommodations and such are going out. But we also
21 found that there were several other gaps in the process.
22 So we are making those improvements, implementing some
23 technology, eliminating some waste and eliminating some
24 duplication of records.

25 Records Management System: As you are aware,

1 this new technology is going live in December. Currently
2 we have underway an effort to recruit several new civilian
3 staff for that; for those roles in that unit. So that's
4 underway. And as I mentioned before, we're working with
5 the Train Academy staff and AC White for that preparatory
6 program to get people the M-codes to be successful.

7 The last thing that you'll see on your -- behind
8 the report; COMMISSIONER BELL reached out to ask us about
9 benefits that were available to officers that were killed
10 in the line of duty. A more formal report will be
11 forthcoming from executive manager Lamar. But I did want
12 to give you just some bullets and highlights of what those
13 numbers just look like that were offered or available to
14 officers. And with that I'll take any questions you may
15 have.

16 COMMISSIONER BELL: Commission, before we do that
17 I want to acknowledge to my right, immediate right, is the
18 Commissioner Lisa Carter from District 6. Good to see you
19 this afternoon.

20 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Thank you.

21 COMMISSIONER BELL: Okay. Questions, concerns of
22 the director?

23 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Through the Chair.

24 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes.

25 COMMISSIONER MOORE: If a person wants to join

1 the Detroit Police Department -- I know I ask this question
2 frequently, but I think it's important to educate the
3 community -- what options do they have if they want to join
4 and make contact with you?

5 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: Okay. So if they want to
6 join, if they actually know that they want to apply they
7 should go online to DetroitMI.gov/employment and select the
8 police officer link in order to apply to become a police
9 officer. We also have a web page under
10 DetroitMI.gov/department. And they would select police
11 department; and we have all the information that they --
12 that will probably answer a lot of their questions, like
13 frequently asked questions, if you will; and there will be
14 information there that they can look at. They also can
15 contact us at (313) 596-2145. Again that's (313) 596-2145.

16 COMMISSIONER MOORE: How about letters of appeal?
17 Do we get a lot of letters of appeal where candidates have
18 been rejected?

19 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: Yes. It depends on the point
20 at which they're rejected or disqualified. So we receive
21 appeals in a variety of ways. They come to the chief's
22 office; they come to me directly; or they go to the Board
23 of Police Commissioners. Any of those avenues would be
24 appropriate.

25 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair.

1 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, sir.

2 COMMISSIONER BURTON: I'd like to know, HR
3 Director, do your office do any surveys to see if anybody,
4 you know, any applicants that are looking to apply for DPD
5 for future career? Are they satisfied? Whether -- whether
6 or not -- do your office do anything like that?

7 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: So that I understand your
8 question; we would be surveying them at what point?

9 COMMISSIONER BURTON: To see are they satisfied,
10 you know, as far as whether, you know --

11 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: We don't do a survey per se.
12 We do -- at the final orientation for those that are
13 selected to go to the academy we do have conversations with
14 that group of people. But in terms of those that may be in
15 the process, that might have been disqualified, we don't
16 survey that group of people, if that's your question. I
17 don't know if that answers your question or not.

18 COMMISSIONER BURTON: And is there any way we can
19 look at the numbers from those that you have surveyed in
20 the past?

21 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: So we don't conduct a survey.
22 We have conversation with those candidates that are going
23 to the academy. So we don't record any data, if that's
24 your question.

25 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Okay. Thank you.

1 COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioner.

2 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Yes, sir. If I may
3 ask. I know we've asked this question before, Director.
4 But just as a refresher, some of the reasons why people are
5 disqualified; like is there a trend? Are we seeing kind of
6 the same kinds of issues always occurring for the temporary
7 and the permanent?

8 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: Yes. So the temporary it
9 generally is because they don't meet the minimum entrance
10 qualifications. The biggest thing is driving records.
11 Either not having a driver's license or having a poor
12 driving record. So that's a temporary disqualification,
13 because that's something that people can fix. In terms of
14 permanent disqualifications, it's felony records and
15 driving records again. Those are kind of the top
16 categories.

17 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. And then I
18 do have a question regarding the benefits for officers.

19 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: Yes.

20 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: I personally think that
21 the -- first of all, where does the \$10,000 come from for
22 the death benefit?

23 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: So every city employee
24 contributes a -- I think it's 40 cents or something like
25 that per pay period toward the death benefit. And that

1 death benefit comes from -- you know, it's available.

2 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: The general fund --

3 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: Yeah, the general fund.

4 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: -- in terms of DPD
5 general fund?

6 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: General fund for the City of
7 Detroit.

8 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: Okay. So I personally
9 think that that is so low. \$10,000 is very low. And I
10 want to know what is the process of considering raising
11 that amount?

12 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: So I don't know what the
13 process would be. But clearly because it is a standard
14 death benefit for every employee, whether sworn or
15 civilian, across the board there probably is some ordinance
16 that might dictate that.

17 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: Okay.

18 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: Maybe something that might be
19 in the charter. So I'm sure there's something legal that
20 would probably have to be done to alter that amount.

21 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: And I'm just thinking
22 that if your job is of the type of a police officer, law
23 enforcement, where, you know, death is a possibility every
24 single day that that amount should be higher. And so I
25 would like to again in addition to the other benefit that I

1 was asking about try to research that and find out if
2 there's something that we can do to raise that.

3 COMMISSIONER BELL: Noted.

4 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Through the chair.

5 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, sir.

6 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Through the Chair. And
7 thank you Commissioner Dewaelsche for that, because that
8 was one of my questions and I really appreciate that. And
9 to further expand on that -- and I want to thank you,
10 Director, for this information on the benefits. And I
11 forgot what commissioner asked for, but it is timely.

12 Also the Michigan Commission on Law Enforcement
13 Survivor Benefits State of Michigan. And I'm sure in the
14 research we'll get the amount from that. Now that is
15 something that we can do as a commission. And I believe
16 the chief may have lobbied the state on another issue
17 pertaining to benefits. But there's something that we can
18 do as a commission -- or as commissioners or as a
19 commission is to lobby our state reps once we find out the
20 amount for that. Because so important those in government
21 and general society itself -- and they always talk about
22 first responders, first responders. And I think that first
23 response should be appropriate financially if death does
24 occur. Not only for a police but also fire fighters too.
25 In the federal survivors benefit that amount is not there.

1 But I know we can research it online. I believe it was
2 \$200,000. I know the president had voted it up. I don't
3 have the exact amount, but I think it went beyond or it was
4 right at \$200,000.

5 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: I don't recall the amount
6 either. E.M. Lamar will have better information on that,
7 and she will provide you with a full report on that
8 information.

9 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, ma'am.

10 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: I do want to point out too
11 that some of these items, like the optional life insurance
12 and the pension benefits with the survivor spouse and such
13 are options that the officer elects.

14 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes.

15 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: So there would be no amount
16 to provide for those two options because they would vary
17 according to those options, those elected options.

18 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, ma'am. But there is
19 something that, like I said, that we can once we find out
20 what the state commission is doing; you know, just, you
21 know as Commissioner Dewaelsche stated, the other amount
22 was considered low where we could lobby the state -- I can
23 lobby my state rep, senator and we can engage in some
24 activism to try to get that amount raised if we feel that
25 is not appropriate. So thank you.

1 COMMISSIONER VANN: Mr. Chair.

2 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, sir.

3 COMMISSIONER VANN: I always appreciate the work
4 that Director Oxendine does for us in such a comprehensive
5 way and in such great detail.

6 Thank you very much.

7 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: Thank you, sir.

8 COMMISSIONER VANN: I too would really just like
9 to go on record in saying that \$10,000 is a very abysmal
10 amount for, you know -- I don't think that we can look at a
11 police officer and equate what they do every day to the
12 average city worker. And I think -- you know, I happen to
13 every day work with families in bereavement, work with the
14 families as a counselor, work with families who are in
15 distress. And I have had the unfortunate opportunity to
16 have to deal with families of police officers who have been
17 -- who have fallen on duty through the years, and
18 firefighters as well, and the kind of needs, the kind of
19 sacrifices, first of all, that many of those families have
20 made. We know that we've just increased the salaries of
21 police officers. That the salaries themselves were at an
22 abysmal rate and still need a lot of work done to them.
23 But for us to feel that this is the kind of thanks and the
24 kind of recognition that should be given to families of
25 fallen officers I think is a little bit unconscionable for

1 us. I think -- I would hope that this commission -- and
2 I'm sure that we're of like mind on this -- could advocate
3 at least for some changes in that regard and do our due
4 diligence with the other agencies and the other levels of
5 government to try to see just exactly what can be done.

6 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Through the chair.

7 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, sir.

8 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Maybe we should have a
9 letter grafted by our board secretary in regards to going
10 to the legislation in Lansing regarding these concerns.

11 COMMISSIONER BELL: Well they barely passed what
12 you see now through the State Senate and also the House.
13 And, in fact, the House voted it down. And we need to
14 perhaps hear from Mark Young and Diaz from the two unions.
15 Both have lobbyists in Lansing in terms of what's really --
16 how we can be involved. And maybe perhaps if not in the
17 next couple of months we can get them before us to talk
18 about these issues here, then we can perhaps --

19 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Join.

20 COMMISSIONER BELL: -- join the effort. Because
21 I know they've been lobbied extensively in reference to the
22 benefits, and especially when an officer is killed in the
23 line of duty; police, fire. In particular here we go back
24 to back on those. And we had a side bar discussion in
25 terms of what steps do the family take to make sure they

1 get what they're entitled to, you know, in terms of working
2 that out. Perhaps you can elaborate on that.

3 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: I can.

4 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes.

5 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: So executive manager Lamar --

6 COMMISSIONER BELL: Okay.

7 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: -- is very versed in this --

8 COMMISSIONER BELL: Okay.

9 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: -- and has the responsibility
10 of police medical along with the union, depending on which
11 union, provide a contact or liaison person as well. EM
12 Lamar and her team they coordinate all the city benefits.
13 They reach out. They handle the Worker's Compensation
14 benefits and such. So that person in my office is the one
15 that works directly with the family to ensure that they're
16 aware of what benefits are available and to help navigate,
17 if you will, them getting those benefits.

18 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you.

19 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair.

20 Question for HR director. Do we know of other cities like
21 LA as far as what their death benefits are for officers?

22 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: No, I don't know.

23 COMMISSIONER BURTON: You don't know what their
24 benefits are?

25 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: No.

1 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Or any other agency?

2 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: No, I don't have that
3 information.

4 COMMISSIONER BELL: Well I want to thank you for
5 the updates and due diligence. We're looking forward to
6 more information in relation to this particular issue.

7 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: Yes, sir.

8 COMMISSIONER BELL: And I thank Commissioner Vann
9 and Crawford for raising those issues, among others.

10 Yes, sir. You want to elaborate?

11 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes. Is it possible that
12 we could have Mr. Lamar come before us.

13 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: EM Lamar?

14 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes.

15 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: Ms. Lamar. Bridgett Lamar.

16 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: I'm sorry. Pardon me.
17 My apologies. Ms. Lamar.

18 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: Sure. We can make that
19 happen.

20 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, ma'am. Thank you.

21 COMMISSIONER BELL: I'd like to tie in with the
22 two union leaders. We can do it, work it up in conjunction
23 and get the whole scoop.

24 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: Mr. Chair, perhaps we
25 could have a presentation --

1 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes.

2 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: -- just on benefits for

3 --

4 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, ma'am. Okay. Thank
5 you.

6 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: -- the deceased
7 officers or something like that.

8 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes.

9 COMMISSIONER VANN: Mr. Chair, something else
10 just came to my mind as well. When officers are hired in
11 through your department are they guided to let's say
12 information or suggested things that they need to do to
13 protect their families? Are you in a position to offer
14 information? I'm not making you the salesperson, but to
15 offer information that would help them to better indemnify
16 themselves and their families?

17 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: What I can say is that when
18 they are hired they have an orientation with their union.
19 And I'm sure that their union -- I don't want to speak for
20 them, but I'm sure they're provided with some information
21 during that orientation. During our orientation we kind of
22 get them on board. We go over extensively about the
23 benefits that the city has to offer. In terms of us
24 guiding them to get outside benefits from other
25 organizations, we do not do that directly. However, we

1 have vendors that do appear for what we're going to call
2 supplemental benefits, like AD&D -- AD&D insurance and
3 those kinds of things. And so we make sure that those
4 vendors are available for officers to talk to. So we don't
5 want to be the salesperson, as you will. But we do provide
6 an opportunity for officers to connect with those vendors
7 that do work with the city; provide that information;
8 provide those benefits to them.

9 COMMISSIONER VANN: Great. Good. Thank you.

10 COMMISSIONER BELL: Is there any other questions
11 or concerns? I just want to --

12 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Through the Chair. I thank
13 you. Director Oxendine, are there medical benefits as well
14 that go along with the monetary?

15 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: It depends.

16 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Okay.

17 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: It depends on -- and those
18 medical benefits would be for the surviving children. And
19 it does depend on a set of variables in terms of the age of
20 the children and such. So the answer is yes. And it could
21 be no depending on the circumstances.

22 COMMISSIONER CARTER: But for a spouse it may or
23 may not? I understand about the children.

24 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: I'm not certain about the
25 spouse.

1 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Okay.

2 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: I know there is some
3 provision for children.

4 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Okay.

5 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: And I don't know for how long
6 either. There's some time limit. But EM Lamar would have
7 better information.

8 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Thank you.

9 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you. Outstanding.

10 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: Thank you.

11 COMMISSIONER BELL: Next item of business would
12 be Deputy Chief Dolunt. You have the mic. Would you
13 introduce any DPD personnel? I see two or three out there.

14 DEPUTY CHIEF DOLUNT: Yes.

15 COMMISSIONER BELL: Did I say assistant chief?

16 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: No. But that's okay.
17 The way my career has been going it doesn't make any
18 difference.

19 COMMISSIONER BELL: Your check says assistant
20 chief, right.

21 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: Yeah.

22 COMMISSIONER BELL: Okay.

23 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: We got DC Hall,
24 Lieutenant Johnson, Director Washington. Captain Chambers
25 is back there. Officer Williams is here. Is that it?

1 COMMISSIONER BELL: Okay.

2 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: That's it.

3 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, sir.

4 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: Okay. So a couple
5 things. I'll give you the stats first.

6 Our homicides are up by nineteen over the last
7 year, which is 58%. Our nonfatals are down 92, which is a
8 decrease of 10%. Our robberies are down 380, which is down
9 14%. And our carjacking is down 164. Carjackings are down
10 164, 36%. I got to get some from the phone because I'll
11 lose it. So have you talked about funeral arrangements
12 yet?

13 COMMISSIONER BELL: No, sir. You can elaborate.

14 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: I'll bring this up on
15 the phone. So as we know Officer Jarrett was killed on
16 Friday. Services will be Saturday and Sunday. He will be
17 laid out at the Swanson Funeral Home, Swan and Son's
18 Funeral Home at 30351 Dequindre. That will be Sunday from
19 2:00 to 9:00, and Saturday from 2:00 to 9:00 as well. The
20 services will be at Second Ebenezer Church on Monday.
21 Service will begin at noon and family hour at 11:00.
22 Internment will be at Woodlawn Cemetery. So those are the
23 services for Officer Jarrett.

24 Obviously we're having a tough time. It's our
25 second one in six weeks. And quite frankly, I don't like

1 getting good at this. I don't. These preparations are
2 coming too easily. It's got to stop.

3 Saturday we're having a fund raiser for Sergeant
4 Steil -- Captain Steil at the Detroit zoo. It's from 12:00
5 to 4:00. \$10 to get into the zoo. We're going to have a
6 chili cook-off. Charlie LeDuff with Fox 2 and Grace Keros
7 with the coney island, American Coney Island, are putting
8 this on. Various fire departments and police departments
9 throughout the metropolitan area are doing a cook-off. So
10 it's \$10 to get into the zoo. And then if you want to go
11 to the chili cook-off it's \$10. It's all you can eat, and
12 it really is good. And we do need something to take our
13 minds off the tragedies that are happening; not only in
14 Detroit but around the country.

15 This morning we had a fatal shooting of an
16 individual that was working on our cease fire project. The
17 individual that shot him is in custody. But, again, it's
18 tragic. Because even though he wasn't a sworn member of
19 the department he was doing things to make the community
20 better, and he was senselessly gunned down this morning.

21 COMMISSIONER BELL: Could you -- I'm sorry.
22 Could you elaborate? I didn't really follow you.

23 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: We have a cease fire
24 project.

25 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, I know cease fire.

1 Right. He was a volunteer part of the program.

2 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: He worked part of the
3 program, and he did a really good job. He was well
4 respected by the cease fire; not only from the department
5 but from state agencies and federal agencies. He was doing
6 a really good job. And so they're pretty messed up right
7 now; because, again, he died senselessly. Here's an
8 individual who turned his life around, found God, and was
9 trying to give back to the community. And it appears an
10 acquaintance from his past senselessly -- they're all
11 senseless -- killed him. But we caught the individual
12 several hours ago, because that's kind of what we do. But
13 we're grieving again because he's a member of the Detroit
14 -- he was an extended member of the Detroit Police family.
15 So we await, try and do something for that family as well
16 and get through another senseless tragedy.

17 COMMISSIONER BELL: If you at some point share
18 the name and information. We would like to send
19 condolences.

20 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: You know what; I have it
21 right now.

22 COMMISSIONER BELL: Oh, okay.

23 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: Jermain Swanson?

24 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Tillman.

25 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: Tillman.

1 COMMISSIONER VANN: He was about 22.

2 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: No. No, no. He was an
3 older individual. Let me double check. I just got all
4 this -- ten thousand things going today. The ironic part
5 of this -- and correct me if I'm wrong from the staff out
6 there -- is he's the biological father of Deante Sanford
7 who just got out of prison for four murders. So the family
8 is going through a tough, tough, tough time. And -- let me
9 find this thing. I'm sorry. I didn't think you'd ask me
10 for the name.

11 Elaine, do you have that available? I'm looking
12 for it. I mean Renee. Not Elaine.

13 RENEE: His name is Jermaine Tillman.

14 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: We did lock up the
15 individual who did it, so we'll be presenting a scheduled
16 report to the Wayne County Prosecutor's Office. And if
17 they find any probable cause they will charge him with
18 murder. I'm sorry. Any questions?

19 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Through the Chair?

20 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, ma'am.

21 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Assistant Chief, you said
22 it wasn't an random shooting, it was somebody --

23 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: Who knew him.

24 COMMISSIONER CARTER: -- who knew him?

25 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: Yes, ma'am.

1 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Thank you.

2 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: Oh, I forgot about this.
3 Tonight I'll be at the Detroit Public Library. The Pistons
4 in conjunction with the Ross Institute are doing a
5 presentation trying to get -- if I'm proper on this --
6 trying to get a connection back between law enforcement and
7 our youth. Kids out there, they're afraid of us because of
8 all the media attention we've been getting and all the
9 shootings that are going on with both officers being shot
10 and citizens being shot by police. So we're going to do a
11 connection thing with the -- at the main Detroit Public
12 Library from 6:00 to 8:00 with the Detroit Pistons and the
13 Ross Institute. So you're welcome to come if you want to.

14 I'm kind of interested to see and get the
15 perspective of some of these youth. I had occasion to get
16 be called to Skateland Saturday night. They had a fight,
17 and they had to kick all the kids out of the Skateland
18 because these two females were fighting. And when I got
19 them out on the street I said, you got to stop. And they
20 told me I can't -- you can't talk to us like that. You
21 know, you might not like me. I just lost an officer the
22 night before. And I to my credit, you guys know me, I
23 didn't lose my temper. But we do have to get reconnected
24 with the youth.

25 I think people think we're going out there

1 shooting people randomly, and that's not the case.
2 Throughout the world police officers are being attacked.
3 And some do jump the gun. But I said before, what, less
4 than a percent bring guns to badge and we do try to help.
5 We rush in when everybody else rushes out. So you're
6 welcome to come, and I'll be there. Are there any
7 questions?

8 COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioners, questions or
9 comments?

10 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: Thank you.

11 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you for the report.
12 And we understand two officers lost their lives, you know.
13 So seeing as though that these are difficult times, but we
14 must go forward. We appreciate the service. Especially
15 the officers who worked this past weekend. Police, fire,
16 EMS and all the volunteers that came together. So it was
17 really welcome that type of support system.

18 Yes, sir.

19 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Assistant Chief, what city
20 will the arrangements be held initially. Detroit or is it
21 another --

22 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: Arrangements for -- I'm
23 sorry -- for the funeral?

24 COMMISSIONER MOORE: No. The funeral will be
25 here in Detroit. But the viewing?

1 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: The viewing is at the
2 Swanson Funeral Home, Gratiot.

3 COMMISSIONER BELL: In Warren, Michigan I think.

4 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: Is it Warren?

5 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes.

6 COMMISSIONER VANN: Yes, we have a -- that's
7 another Swanson. That's not the Swanson you're thinking
8 of.

9 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: Roseville?

10 COMMISSIONER BELL: It's Warren.

11 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: It's on Gratiot. That's
12 all I know. But I think we worked out something where some
13 of those costs will be defrayed. You eluded to the funeral
14 home. There is an organization that takes care of deceased
15 officers. We weren't able to get it in time for -- but we
16 were able to get it in time for Officer Jarrett. So we
17 can't thank the Swanson Family Funeral Home enough and his
18 whole organization.

19 Gail, what is the name of the organization? Do
20 you remember?

21 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: It's on your sheet
22 commissioners. It's called the Dignity Memorial Program.

23 COMMISSIONER BELL: Okay.

24 DIRECTOR OXENDINE: And the full cost of the
25 burial with the exception of the death certificates is

1 covered through this program if all the services are
2 handled by one of their providers; and that's one of their
3 providers.

4 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: And we found this
5 information out too late for Captain Steil. But
6 unfortunately because it just happened six weeks ago we
7 were able to get on top of it for Officer Jarrett to help
8 out the family.

9 COMMISSIONER MOORE: But also I'd like to thank
10 Bishop Vann --

11 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: Absolutely.

12 COMMISSIONER MOORE: -- in this matter. And I
13 want to say thank you, Bishop.

14 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: I can't thank you guys
15 enough and the community for their outpouring of support.
16 We're getting letters from around the country. Kansas City
17 sent us an American flag in the shadow box. We're going to
18 present it to the family on Saturday. And former officers
19 are making shadow boxes like we did for the Captain Steil.
20 Again, it's a tough time. But when you guys come together
21 with us we really appreciate it. The whole community. I
22 know I'm not looking up. It's taped. But thank you for
23 the assistance Detroit for what you do for us.

24 COMMISSIONER BELL: Okay.

25 COMMISSIONER VANN: Mr. Chair.

1 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, sir.

2 COMMISSIONER VANN: I do know that -- I got a
3 call from Fox 2 before I left the office. And there are
4 people calling the television stations, Chief, who want to
5 contribute, want to help to do something tangible. Is
6 there one central contact sort of a person? The people are
7 trying to contact the family, which of course we're not
8 going to allow them.

9 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: No.

10 COMMISSIONER VANN: But is there one central
11 place that they can call?

12 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: If they want to make a
13 check they can make it out to Sacha, S-a-c-h-a, Jarrett.
14 The foundation is not doing it. They can even send it to
15 us at the police station, or the headquarters, or the
16 Twelfth Precinct. They'll get it to the family. I
17 understand there is a GoFundMe account that son Christian,
18 the oldest son, who is a veteran, started. But if they
19 want to go directly through us we'll get it to the family.
20 But any checks should be made out to Sacha Jarrett.
21 Because she does have four children.

22 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Commissioner. I also
23 saw in today's newspaper --

24 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes.

25 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: -- which is why I was

1 inquiring about the benefit --

2 COMMISSIONER BELL: Right.

3 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHÉ: -- this GoFundMe page.

4 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes. Right.

5 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: And Sylvia just sent me
6 a thing here. It says, Project Green Light press
7 conference tonight.

8 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes.

9 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: You have it already?
10 I'm sorry.

11 COMMISSIONER BELL: You can mention it verbally.
12 We have a --

13 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: I just did. It was
14 coming to me. I wasn't prepared. I apologize.

15 COMMISSIONER BELL: We're good.

16 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: A lot of stuff on my
17 plate. I'm sorry.

18 COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioner, it's always
19 been about the arrangement. And I would assume that the
20 commissioner can report directly to the church for the
21 funeral. And from there I'm pretty sure Commissioner Vann
22 would look out for us in terms of seating. It's always an
23 issue in terms of where we should be. You know, hopefully
24 that will be resolved for this particular funeral. We'll
25 appreciate it, sir.

1 COMMISSIONER VANN: Sure.

2 COMMISSIONER BELL: So we know the location and
3 we know that.

4 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: Thank you.

5 COMMISSIONER BELL: There's no other matter from
6 DPD coming forward at this time; is that correct? Okay.

7 Standing in ad hoc committee reports. Any
8 standing in ad hoc committee reports?

9 COMMISSIONER SHELBY: Mr. Chairman.

10 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, sir.

11 COMMISSIONER SHELBY: Through the Chair. Citizen
12 Complaint Committee; we've made. We're going to be making
13 some recommendation to the Board for their approval. These
14 recommendations will be made before the end of the year as
15 it relates to office procedures and appeal procedures.

16 COMMISSIONER BELL: Appreciate that, sir. Thank
17 you.

18 Mr. Hicks, board secretary.

19 SECRETARY HICKS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. In
20 addition to what I have said earlier I have nothing to add
21 in terms of report to the Board.

22 COMMISSIONER BELL: I want to thank Mr. Hicks for
23 the due diligence in terms of this weekend in entertaining
24 the Chair and Vice Chair and interacting. We had an
25 opportunity to hang with Deputy Chief Washington and her

1 lovely daughter at the Twelfth Precinct. So we didn't go
2 through the hen and house with the chief, but we stood by.
3 I'm afraid of those activities at this stage. But I really
4 want to thank the deputy chief for coming out and AC Stair,
5 assistant chief. We interacted. I know AC Dolunt, he
6 worked my community. He worked all the communities. And I
7 know Deputy Chief Hall was out there. So I can't say
8 enough for this department. We want to thank you over and
9 over again for the residents.

10 I see the people really appreciate -- the MPO's
11 was at the Fifth Precinct meeting last night. And once
12 again, business goes on. They were just there and as part
13 of the process. Even with Halloween, with the tragic death
14 of the officer all the precinct was engaging the young
15 kids. They talked about how many trunk and treat -- that's
16 the term for me -- in terms of activities supporting the
17 families and the kids. I'm glad to hear the mayor is
18 moving towards more of that next year, and perhaps we can
19 down size the fire approach. But it's one thing about it,
20 it's fellowship. It's fellowship.

21 Deputy Chief Drake.

22 DEPUTY CHIEF DRAKE: We went out too.

23 COMMISSIONER BELL: Oh, thank you. OCI. You
24 want to say something about that?

25 DEPUTY CHIEF DRAKE: No.

1 COMMISSIONER BELL: Okay. Thank you for OCI.

2 DEPUTY CHIEF DRAKE: We had a great time.

3 COMMISSIONER BELL: We didn't encounter you. I
4 know you said you would be out in all activities. And
5 thank you and your staff. By all means, we want to
6 recognize all hands on deck.

7 COMMISSIONER SANDERS: Chair, we went out too.

8 COMMISSIONER BELL: Who's we?

9 COMMISSIONER SANDERS: District 7. Me, my wife.

10 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Same with District 6. Me
11 and my husband went out.

12 COMMISSIONER BELL: Okay, all of the
13 commissioners were engaged.

14 COMMISSIONER SANDERS: For three days. 5:00 to
15 12:00.

16 COMMISSIONER BELL: Outstanding. That's what it
17 was all about, and all come together. So we really have
18 downsized just from my activities of working back in the
19 day. We've come a long way, and I think we have -- but
20 just be hopeful. Okay.

21 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair.

22 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, sir.

23 COMMISSIONER BURTON: This past couple weeks I
24 had an opportunity to -- I just want to weigh in, just
25 share the story with the Board. I had an opportunity to

1 attend a breast cancer survivor convention that was here in
2 downtown Detroit in the Renaissance Center. The month of
3 October was breast cancer awareness month. So I got a
4 chance to hear some testimonies of some very brave
5 survivors from across the world, but also here locally in
6 Detroit. I'd like it if the Board of Police Commissioners
7 can make out a resolution -- actually I'd like to put a
8 motion on the floor for it -- for Sister Network, which is
9 a breast cancer survivor group here to celebrate it's 15th
10 year anniversary as far as convention.

11 COMMISSIONER BELL: Well normal --

12 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Those are some -- you heard
13 testimonies. I mean, it was some very brave women. Jerome
14 Bettis spoke about how his mother had cancer and how Sister
15 Network had helped her through her -- you know, go through
16 some tackles with this deadly disease.

17 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Through the Chair.

18 Commissioner, can you provide us with a workup of
19 the information for the resolution?

20 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Sure. Absolutely.

21 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Well then I'll second.

22 COMMISSIONER BELL: Well I just want to say, we
23 have a resolution process in terms of meeting certain
24 criteria. And if it fits the criteria then we can go
25 forward. But basically it's surrounding public safety.

1 That is the thrust of the Board in terms of we drafted a
2 resolution process. So I would ask that you hold that in
3 abeyance in terms of looking at the criteria. It has to
4 meet that criteria. And by all means, all efforts of
5 fighting cancer, domestic violence is appropriate, but it
6 might not meet our criteria in terms of what we try to
7 engage in terms of the Board of Detroit Police
8 Commissioners.

9 COMMISSIONER BURTON: May I add something?

10 COMMISSIONER BELL: Sure.

11 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Thank you. The NFL even
12 got behind -- I can't think of the football player from the
13 Lions. Was his name Ash? Defensive end. What's his name?
14 Can somebody help me out with that?

15 ASSISTANT CHIEF DOLUNT: Ziggy Ansah.

16 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Yes. You know, he came out
17 and spoke so beautifully about it. And then the story
18 about Jerome Bettis talking about his mother and breast
19 cancer. I mean, it was some brave women in the room from
20 all over. I think it would be nice if we can recognize
21 that group for all of the work and effort that they do.

22 And question for you, Mr. Chairman, what is the
23 process for the resolution?

24 COMMISSIONER BELL: Sir, we would interact with
25 the committee for resolution and meet the criteria, and

1 then perhaps it's appropriate. That's all I'm suggesting.

2 COMMISSIONER BURTON: But is there anything in
3 writing about the process?

4 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, sir. That's what I'm
5 speaking of. We have a process for that. So we'll make
6 sure that the board secretary share that with you.

7 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Mr. Chairman, can you
8 explain what the process is?

9 COMMISSIONER BELL: I cannot verbally explain it.
10 But we do have a process that the Board voted on. We will
11 entertain --

12 COMMISSIONER BURTON: So if you cannot -- if
13 there's a process, Mr. Chairman -- and correct me if I'm
14 wrong -- we should be able to talk about the process,
15 right, so we can all be aware of it. This is a public
16 meeting, right, Mr. Chairman?

17 COMMISSIONER BELL: I understand that, sir. But
18 due respect I said there's a process of resolution. I'm
19 not prepared to talk about it on the top of my head. But
20 we will review it and look at it and make you aware of it.
21 I think we have shared this in the past. So if we can
22 move on.

23 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Through the Chair, with all
24 due respect he placed a motion on the floor. I did a
25 second. So the motion is still active on the floor.

1 COMMISSIONER BELL: What I'm trying to say is
2 that the motion is out of order because we have a process.
3 So if you will entertain that, Mr. Vice Chair, that there's
4 a process. Perhaps if we meet that criteria then I'll
5 entertain that motion. But the motion is out of order.
6 But we have a process to resolution.

7 COMMISSIONER MOORE: So the secretary is going to
8 provide that?

9 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, sir, he will provide
10 that.

11 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Thank you.

12 Next order of business will be a resolution for
13 Officer Jarrett.

14 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Yes, Mr. Chair.

15 Board resolution honoring Police Officer Myron A.
16 Jarrett (Posthumously).

17 WHEREAS Myron A. Jarrett was appointed to the
18 Detroit Police Department on November 21, 2008. Upon
19 graduating from the Metropolitan Police Academy, Officer
20 Jarrett began his career at the Sixth Precinct. He was a
21 loving husband to his wife, Sacha, and father to his
22 children: Christian, Caitlin, Cameron, and Cassidy; and

23 WHEREAS Officer Jarrett dutifully served the
24 Sixth Precinct, Detroit Detention Center, and Twelfth
25 Precinct. On Friday, October 28, 2016, after eight (8)

1 years of service, Police Officer Myron Jarrett, Badge 4538,
2 was struck by a vehicle during a traffic stop and later
3 that day passed away; and.

4 WHEREAS Officer Jarrett graduated from
5 Southeastern High School in 1994, and briefly attended
6 Wayne State University. He loved sports and played
7 baseball and ran track. During his law enforcement career,
8 Officer Jarrett received numerous letters of commendation
9 from citizens and superiors; and.

10 WHEREAS Officer Myron Jarrett was "always
11 positive," "a professional cop," and loved to use traffic
12 stops as teaching moments. "His fellow officers all said
13 he was a nice man, a professional police officer who really
14 served his community with distinction," the police chief
15 stated. "One of things he liked to do was write tickets
16 because he would talk to people, he would counsel them;"
17 and

18 WHEREAS Officer Jarrett tirelessly served the
19 Detroit Police Department, the citizens of Detroit and its
20 neighboring communities with unwavering devotion. His
21 commitment to service, integrity, and dedication were a
22 credit to the Detroit Police Department. He was highly
23 respected as a consummate professional throughout the law
24 enforcement community.

25 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED That the Detroit

1 Board of Police Commissioners, speaking for the citizens of
2 Detroit and the Detroit Police Department, award this
3 resolution posthumously in recognition of Police Officer
4 Myron A. Jarrett's eight years of dedicated and diligent
5 public service. His professionalism, integrity, and
6 standard of commitment to the City of Detroit and its
7 citizens merit our highest regard.

8 We salute you Officer Myron A. Jarrett for a job
9 well done.

10 Move for adoption.

11 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: Support.

12 COMMISSIONER BELL: Been moved and supported.

13 Discussion? Those in favor say aye.

14 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

15 COMMISSIONER BELL: Those opposed? Motion
16 carried.

17 I'm going to ask vice chair to -- I'm sorry,
18 let's pause one second. Any old business?

19 Yes, ma'am?

20 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: Mr. Chair, if I may
21 inquire. In October -- I can't remember exactly which week
22 it was -- but we talked about tasers at a couple of
23 meetings.

24 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, ma'am.

25 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: And we said we would

1 take the issue up in November. And so I would like to just
2 request that we consider it for a meeting in November.
3 Maybe there has to be some language drafted in terms of a
4 motion to either approve or not. But I would like for us
5 to take it up again this month.

6 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, ma'am, Commissioner
7 Dewaelsche. I would ask the board secretary to -- I think
8 our next community meeting is going to address the issue of
9 --

10 Go ahead, sir.

11 SECRETARY HICKS: Thank you. The plan next
12 community meeting is it's going to be a continuation of the
13 discussion that we've had thus far around use of force.
14 We're also going to try and tie into it the training
15 curriculum at the academy, and to the degree that we look
16 at use of force issues and deescalation in that regard.
17 And we may then also double back around to our earlier
18 discussion that we had in connection with the use of the
19 management awareness systems, the MAS system. And, again,
20 the approach there is to just look at how we're operating
21 as an organization. Essentially in an area that
22 potentially has the greatest amount of contact with
23 citizens and throughout the question of the use of force.

24 In that regard we were hoping coming through that
25 to pivot and then go to the specific questions of the

1 tasers. Not in the next meeting, but following that. And
2 also to return to the question of the pilot program in
3 which the department has relative to body cameras. Because
4 we really wanted to take body cameras as well as tasers and
5 put that once we've had a kind of discussion around use of
6 force. So that's kind of the way in which we were
7 generally planning the next few community meetings out and
8 addressing those types of issues. And we'll specifically
9 have, as you're requesting in November, a specific
10 discussion around the tasers.

11 COMMISSIONER BELL: Could we have a discussion in
12 November and actually have the vote in December to make
13 sure that we flush out all the concerns? Would that
14 satisfy you in terms of -- we have a short month. We have
15 a short month in December. But they're on the front end of
16 December. I think we're looking forward to information
17 from Dearborn PD, which is in use. And we have
18 informations coming from NACo. So we should be able to tie
19 all that in. I want to make sure all the commissioners are
20 comfortable in terms of getting all the facts in reference
21 to this serious, serious issue as we go forward. Would
22 that be in order?

23 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: That would satisfy me
24 if we could make a decision and take a vote --

25 COMMISSIONER BELL: This year.

1 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: -- in December.

2 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, ma'am.

3 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Through the Chair.

4 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, sir.

5 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: As the chair of the
6 policy committee I have yet to see a draft policy or
7 anything. And before I vote on anything I would definitely
8 have to look at a policy. And like what you said, what
9 Dearborn is doing and some of the others in terms of just a
10 review -- and not only for the committee to look at the
11 policy but also for the commission as a whole to kind of
12 refute. Even if it's just a draft policy such as what we
13 did with the body cams. We did have a draft policy up to
14 review, and it was almost two years ago. And it may not
15 be, you know, in its finality, but at least we have a draft
16 policy. And, you know, whether we vote tasers up or down
17 we have something on the -- or the department has something
18 in place.

19 COMMISSIONER BELL: Well that would be our goal
20 is to look at it in terms of December. The board secretary
21 and the policy committee have heard the recommendations.
22 And that's basically what we want to try to move this issue
23 along and get it off the table.

24 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: Yes, Mr. Chair. I just
25 want us to make --

1 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, ma'am.

2 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: -- a decision.

3 COMMISSIONER BELL: I agree with you.

4 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: Because we could do
5 this ongoing for two years.

6 COMMISSIONER BELL: Right.

7 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: And I don't really
8 think we need to do that.

9 COMMISSIONER BELL: I agree with you too. So
10 hopefully we can move it on. And I think we have a good
11 feel for what's happening with that whole piece. But as
12 Commissioner Crawford said, we want to get something in
13 black and white. And I think we can work that up.

14 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: Thank you.

15 COMMISSIONER BELL: Any other old business?
16 Announcement from the vice.

17 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Our next Board of
18 Commissioners meeting is Thursday, November 10, at 6:30
19 p.m. hosted by the Seventh Precinct. The actual event will
20 be at the Church of Christ Elmwood Park, 2001 Antietam
21 Avenue, Detroit, Michigan 48207. And, again, the commander
22 and the captain of the Seventh Precinct are Commander
23 Arnold Williams and Captain Kyra Joy Hope. And I'm sure
24 they look forward to hosting us.

25 Our next BOPC community meeting, which will be in

1 December, December 8, 2016, will be hosted by the Second
2 Precinct, which is District Seventh Precinct. I'm sure
3 Commissioner Sanders can concur on that.

4 COMMISSIONER SANDERS: Oh, yeah.

5 COMMISSIONER MOORE: And the information is
6 forthcoming.

7 COMMISSIONER BELL: We want a great turnout from
8 the Second Precinct, because I know we're going to well at
9 the Seventh Precinct. I'm going to reach out to the
10 minister at the church and the parishioners. Hopefully
11 they may put it on their calendar. I'm going to stop by at
12 some point in time and try to work that up. So thank you
13 for -- oh, you want to mention Green Light.

14 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Okay. It's a media advisory
15 from the department.

16 City of Detroit and DTE Energy are energizing the
17 project Green Light program offering a more affordable
18 option for Detroit companies who wish to install
19 high-efficiency lighting and other energy-savings
20 equipment. That will take place today at 7:00 p.m., which
21 is Thursday, November 3rd at 7:00 p.m., at Marathon Gas
22 Station located at 8930 West Michigan Road -- West
23 McNichols Road. I'm sorry. Detroit, Michigan 48221. And
24 the mayor and commissioner will be along with president of
25 DTE, Electric Trevor Lauer, Nassar Beydoun, and various

1 local business and community members. Are we invited as a
2 commission or are we --

3 UNKNOWN SPEAKER: That was presented as
4 information.

5 COMMISSIONER BELL: Can any, especially
6 westsiders commissioner; can you perhaps attend? I'm
7 already committed to attend the Ninth Precinct meeting at
8 the same time, at 7:00. So any other might want to attend?

9 COMMISSIONER MOORE: 893 West McNichols. Whose
10 district is that? I'll try to squeeze by.

11 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you. We appreciate it.

12 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair.

13 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, sir.

14 COMMISSIONER BURTON: You know I just want to
15 remind you that anytime a commissioner has put a motion on
16 the floor and it is seconded according to Roberts Rule we
17 must vote on it.

18 COMMISSIONER BELL: That is not totally true,
19 sir. I'm not going to be debating with you. But the Chair
20 can say something is out of order and we can move on. So
21 that is the proper procedure.

22 COMMISSIONER BURTON: And I would say point of
23 order, Mr. Chair. Since I've been a commissioner you have
24 been -- you have been a bully. And this antidemocratic
25 behavior must stop. Because every time I find --

1 COMMISSIONER VANN: Mr. Chair, point of order.

2 COMMISSIONER BURTON: -- a good resolution for
3 this --

4 COMMISSIONER VANN: Point of order on the
5 speaker, Mr. Chair.

6 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, sir.

7 COMMISSIONER VANN: I would just resist the urge.
8 If we have any differences among ourselves I just think
9 that we can settle those outside of the public if there's
10 something like that. I mean, name calling. I've just been
11 hearing too much of that in this presidential race, and I
12 don't want to hear anymore of it.

13 ATTENDEES: Thank you. Thank you.

14 COMMISSIONER VANN: I'm tired of hearing people
15 calling each other names. It's time for us to learn how to
16 get along with one another.

17 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair. As the
18 youngest commissioner here, not only in the city of the
19 Detroit, but the youngest commissioner in the country the
20 Detroit every time I bring up a resolution for this body --

21 COMMISSIONER BELL: But Burton --

22 COMMISSIONER BURTON: -- the chairman always --

23 COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioner Burton, you do
24 not have the floor at this time. So I would like to move
25 forward.

1 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair, in
2 Congress, in any form of government, right, once a
3 commissioner or elected official gets the floor that person
4 still has the floor.

5 COMMISSIONER BELL: We can move on. Commissioner
6 Vann already called a point of order. The Chair is moving
7 on the agenda.

8 The next item would be hearing from the public.
9 You have two minutes. Please give your name, and be
10 respectful. And Mr. Brown is going to have the cards over
11 there. So anyone wants to take the mic this is your time.
12 Any others? Thank you.

13 You don't have to respond. Just speak to the
14 issue you're going to bring.

15 CITIZEN: I don't have to respond to what, baby?

16 COMMISSIONER BELL: You don't have to respond to
17 the dialogue here.

18 THE CITIZEN: I just --

19 COMMISSIONER BELL: I just want to.

20 MS. SMITH: Can I say my name?

21 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, ma'am. I just want to
22 give you -- I see your frustration, but I just want to --

23 MS. SMITH: No, I wasn't going to respond. I'll
24 do it afterwards.

25 COMMISSIONER BELL: After the meeting.

1 MS. SMITH: Yes. After the meeting.

2 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you. Thank you. I
3 respect that.

4 MS. SMITH: All right. Berniece Smith. I have
5 heard the sadness of what's going on in our city.

6 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes.

7 MS. SMITH: And I'm very moved by it. And as I
8 stated to you last week, with your permission can I have
9 Mr. Brown -- you know, I told you the forum is going to be
10 held next week. And I'm sorry that it's going to be on
11 your time, you know. But I did bring the fliers for you to
12 see.

13 And one of the things for AC. I want you to know
14 that we share your feelings. The people in the city share
15 your feelings. We know whenever you go on TV you let us
16 know what you think about what's going on. So in my little
17 setting I thought per chance that we would let other people
18 know that don't come here every week. You know what I
19 mean? The people on the outside. And that is one of the
20 reasons with your permission I would like to give Mr. Brown
21 these to give to you.

22 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, ma'am.

23 MS. SMITH: One of the things that you did
24 mention was tasers --

25 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, ma'am.

1 MS. SMITH: -- and the -- what is it gun?

2 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: Body cameras.

3 MS. SMITH: Body cameras. All right. One of the
4 officers, the police officers, that will be attending, he
5 will give us more input in regards to it as from the
6 Ecorse. I was at his office last week, and he was telling
7 me about how they use it there. So maybe that will be
8 enlightening to some of the people and the officers that
9 will be there, you know. And he can tell them, the other
10 police officers I'm speaking about, and let them know how
11 they are working in their district.

12 Also today was a sad day for all of us, as we all
13 know. And the funeral home that you mentioned is not the
14 Swanson we know. Not where I work. It is a Swanson
15 company that's in Warren. So we won't be -- and I'm glad
16 you gave the address, because I didn't have the address
17 myself.

18 UNKNOWN SPEAKER: Madison Heights.

19 MS. SMITH: Pardon me?

20 UNKNOWN SPEAKER: It's in Madison Heights.

21 MS. SMITH: Madison Heights.

22 COMMISSIONER BELL: Oh, Madison Heights? Okay,
23 thank you.

24 MS. SMITH: I'm glad that we all got that
25 straight. So I will put it on the air tomorrow and let the

1 audience know on 910 where it's going to be located and
2 also any information that will be entailed. I thank you so
3 much for your time. Can I give this to --

4 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, ma'am.

5 Chief Investigator Drake and Mr. Hicks, could we
6 assign one or two staff to attend that forum? Can we make
7 some, you know, adjustment in schedule so they can attend
8 that the forum? Since the mayor is showing -- you know
9 Mayor Duggan and others, it's something that we want to be
10 supportive even though we have our community meeting at the
11 same time.

12 INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: I'll try.

13 COMMISSIONER BELL: Okay, thank you. Appreciate
14 it.

15 COMMISSIONER MOORE: For the Chair. The city for
16 the viewing is not Warren. It's Madison Heights.

17 COMMISSIONER BELL: Okay, Madison Heights. Thank
18 you.

19 If there is no other business, I want to thank
20 you for coming out this afternoon. I would hope that you
21 keep Officer Jarrett's family in your prayers and support.
22 And also keep our DPD personnel in your prayers and
23 support, from the chief on down to the police officers and
24 their families, because we all are saddened by this. And
25 not just in Detroit but nationwide, in terms of two

1 officers lost their lives in the last 24 hours.

2 So Commissioner Vann is correct. There's enough
3 hatred out here. We should be very supportive of one
4 another. I welcome any type of criticism. Talk to me
5 before, after, whatever. But basically we want to have a
6 spirit of cooperation. So we just want to move forward.
7 And thank you. If there's no other business the Chair will
8 entertain a motion for adjournment.

9 COMMISSIONER DEWAELESCHE: So moved.

10 COMMISSIONER SANDERS: Support.

11 COMMISSIONER BELL: Properly moved and supported.
12 Those in favor aye.

13 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

14 COMMISSIONER BELL: Those with nays. Motion
15 carried. Thank you.

16 (At 4:26 p.m., proceedings end)

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Don R. Williams



A
Abdula 8:22
abeyance 50:3
able 15:12 42:15
 42:16 43:7
 51:14 56:18
aboard 10:23
absence 9:5
 21:11
Absolutely 43:11
 49:20
abysmal 29:9,22
AC 19:23 22:5
 47:4,5 63:13
academy 6:19
 19:24 22:5
 24:13,23 52:19
 55:15
accommodations
 21:20
account 44:17
accountant 11:21
 11:22
accounting 10:6
 10:13 11:20
achieves 11:22
acknowledge
 22:17
acknowledged
 14:3
acquaintance
 38:10
active 51:25
activism 28:24
activities 4:22
 5:9 47:3,16
 48:4,18
actual 58:19
ad 46:7,8
AD&D 34:2,2
add 17:2 46:20
 50:9
addition 8:10
 11:20 17:11
 26:25 46:20
address 12:9
 16:2 55:8
 64:16,16
addressing 56:8
adjournment 66:8
adjustment 65:7

administrative
 16:14
adoption 4:9
 54:10
advise 13:23
advisement 16:24
advisory 59:14
advocate 30:2
affordable 59:17
afraid 40:7 47:3
afternoon 7:20
 10:5 19:4,6
 22:19 65:20
age 34:19
agencies 30:4
 38:5,5
agency 14:15
 32:1
agenda 4:1 7:21
 62:7
agility 19:23
 20:7
ago 38:12 43:6
 57:14
agree 58:3,9
agreed 17:17
ahead 55:10
air 64:25
allow 44:8
alter 26:20
ambitious 8:2
American 37:7
 43:17
amount 26:11,20
 26:24 27:14,20
 27:25 28:3,5
 28:15,21,24
 29:10 55:22
Angel 4:21
anniversary
 49:10
Announcement
 58:16
Ansah 50:15
answer 23:12
 34:20
answers 24:17
antidemocratic
 60:24
Antietam 58:20
anybody 24:3
anymore 61:12

anytime 60:15
apologies 32:17
apologize 45:14
appeal 17:24,25
 17:25 23:16,17
 46:15
appeals 17:12,14
 17:15 23:21
appear 20:6 34:1
appeared 20:8
appearing 20:3
appears 38:9
applicants 19:13
 24:4
apply 19:13 23:6
 23:8 24:4
appointed 2:8,9
 2:10 52:17
appreciate 6:3
 12:4 13:13
 27:8 29:3
 41:14 43:21
 45:25 46:16
 47:10 60:11
 65:13
approach 12:25
 14:11 15:2
 47:19 55:20
approached 15:8
appropriate 9:18
 23:24 27:23
 28:25 50:5
 51:1
approval 4:8
 46:13
approve 3:25
 55:4
area 37:9 55:21
arms 8:3 10:14
Arnold 58:23
arrangement 7:9
 45:19
arrangements
 7:14 36:11
 41:20,22
arranging 15:5
arrived 11:4
Ash 50:13
asked 23:13 25:3
 27:11
asking 13:20
 17:22 27:1

assign 13:21
 65:6
assignment 17:10
assignments 18:5
assistance 12:19
 43:23
assistant 2:18
 35:15,16,19,21
 35:23 36:2,4
 36:14 37:23
 38:2,20,23,25
 39:2,14,21,23
 39:25 40:2
 41:10,19,22
 42:1,4,9,11
 43:4,11,14
 44:9,12 45:5,9
 45:13,16 46:4
 47:5 50:15
assume 45:19
attach 17:8
attacked 41:2
attend 13:9,22
 49:1 60:6,7,8
 65:6,7
attendance 9:16
attended 6:3
 53:5
ATTENDEES 61:13
attending 64:4
attention 10:4
 40:8
attorney 13:18
 14:18 15:16,18
 15:23 17:13
 18:5,8,14
attorney/client
 16:15
attorneys 14:10
 16:6
attrition 21:3,4
audience 6:14
 65:1
auditing 10:7
 11:23
authority 14:12
authorized 15:1
available 14:8
 16:5 22:9,13
 26:1 31:16
 34:4 39:11
Avenue 1:13

58:21
avenues 23:23
average 29:12
await 38:15
awaiting 19:14
award 54:2
aware 21:25
 31:16 51:15,20
awareness 49:3
 55:19
awesome 12:2,8
aye 4:5,6,13,14
 54:13,14 66:12
 66:13

B

baby 62:15
back 8:11 13:25
 15:4 16:16
 17:11,21 18:24
 30:23,24 35:25
 38:9 40:6
 48:18 55:17
background 10:6
 10:12 11:24
backlog 21:19
badge 41:4 53:1
bar 16:17 30:24
barely 30:11
base 14:22
baseball 53:7
basically 7:3
 49:25 57:22
 66:5
basis 15:8
beautifully
 50:17
began 52:20
beginning 13:3
behalf 10:24
behavior 60:25
believe 8:22
 27:15 28:1
Bell 2:2 3:1,1,5
 3:10,21,24 4:4
 4:7,12,15 5:1
 5:18,22 6:1,7
 6:24 7:13 8:7
 8:23 9:3,9,12
 9:15,20,24
 10:3,8,10,16
 10:18,20 11:3

11:5,13 12:2
 12:12 13:5,11
 13:13 15:20
 16:1,9,12,19
 16:22 17:1,4,7
 18:7,13,18,23
 22:8,16,21,24
 24:1 25:1 27:3
 27:5 29:2 30:7
 30:11,20 31:4
 31:6,8,18 32:4
 32:8,21 33:1,4
 33:8 34:10
 35:9,11,15,19
 35:22 36:1,3
 36:13 37:21,25
 38:17,22 39:20
 41:8,11 42:3,5
 42:10,23 43:24
 44:1,24 45:2,4
 45:8,11,15,18
 46:2,5,10,16
 46:22 47:23
 48:1,3,8,12,16
 48:22 49:11,22
 50:10,24 51:4
 51:9,17 52:1,9
 54:12,15,24
 55:6 56:11,25
 57:2,4,19 58:1
 58:3,6,9,15
 59:7 60:5,11
 60:13,18 61:6
 61:21,23 62:5
 62:16,19,21,25
 63:2,6,22,25
 64:22 65:4,13
 65:17 66:11,14
benefit 25:22,25
 26:1,14,25
 27:25 45:1
benefits 22:9
 25:18 27:10,13
 27:17 28:12
 30:22 31:12,14
 31:16,17,21,24
 33:2,23,24
 34:2,8,13,18
bereavement 7:7
 29:13
Berniece 63:4
Bert 10:11

better 10:11
 28:6 33:15
 35:7 37:20
Bettis 49:14
 50:18
Beydoun 59:25
beyond 28:3
biggest 25:10
biological 39:6
Bishop 2:10 3:3
 7:11 43:10,13
bit 29:25
black 58:13
blanking 14:13
board 1:6 2:12
 6:20 12:8
 13:18 15:10,23
 17:13 18:5,8
 19:4 21:13,17
 23:22 26:15
 30:9 33:22
 46:13,18,21
 48:25 49:6
 50:1,7 51:6,10
 52:15 54:1
 55:7 57:20
 58:17
body 11:19 56:3
 56:4 57:13
 61:20 64:2,3
booklets 19:7
BOPC 58:25
box 43:17
boxes 43:19
brave 49:4,13
 50:19
breast 49:1,3,9
 50:18
Bridgett 32:15
briefly 53:5
bring 15:12
 36:14 41:4
 61:20 62:14
 63:11
bringing 10:3
 15:18
Brooks 6:6,7 9:7
Brown 8:11 62:10
 63:9,20
budget 11:10,16
 12:6,9,18,20
 12:21,24,24

13:4
budgetary 13:1
budgets 11:7
bullets 22:12
bully 60:24
burial 42:25
Burton 2:4 9:4
 9:10,11,14
 23:25 24:2,9
 24:18,25 31:19
 31:23 32:1
 48:21,23 49:12
 49:20 50:9,11
 50:16 51:2,7
 51:12 60:12,14
 60:22 61:2,17
 61:21,22,23
 62:1
business 4:7,17
 35:11 47:12
 52:12 54:18
 58:15 60:1
 65:19 66:7
busy 5:19

C

Caitlin 52:22
cake 20:24
calendar 59:11
call 3:2 34:1
 44:3,11
called 40:16
 42:22 62:6
calling 44:4
 61:10,15
cameras 56:3,4
 64:2,3
Cameron 52:22
cams 57:13
cancer 49:1,3,9
 49:14 50:5,19
candidates 23:17
 24:22
captain 35:24
 37:4 43:5,19
 58:22,23
cards 62:10
care 42:14
career 24:5
 35:17 52:20
 53:7
carjacking 36:9

Carjackings 36:9
carried 4:16
 54:16 66:15
Carter 2:5 3:18
 22:18,20 34:12
 34:16,22 35:1
 35:4,8 38:24
 39:19,21,24
 40:1 48:10
case 16:5 41:1
Cassidy 52:22
categories 25:16
caught 21:18
 38:11
cause 39:17
cease 37:16,23
 37:25 38:4
celebrate 49:9
Cemetery 36:22
Center 49:2
 52:24
central 44:6,10
cents 25:24
ceremony 6:2,3
certain 34:24
 49:23
certificates
 21:19 42:25
certified 11:21
chair 3:1,23
 4:10 5:3 7:23
 7:24 9:11,17
 11:16 12:10,24
 14:2 15:15
 16:11 22:23
 23:25 27:4,6
 29:1 30:6
 31:19 32:24
 33:9 34:12
 39:19 43:25
 46:11,19,24,24
 48:7,21 49:17
 51:23 52:3,14
 54:17,20 57:3
 57:5,24 60:12
 60:19,23 61:1
 61:5,17 62:1,6
 65:15 66:7
chairman 3:18
 4:17 46:9
 50:22 51:7,13
 51:16 61:22

Chairperson 2:2
challenge 15:5
Chambers 35:24
chance 49:4
 63:17
changes 14:14
 30:3
charge 39:17
Charlie 37:6
charter 26:19
check 35:19 39:3
 44:13
checks 44:20
chief 2:17,18
 4:20 8:17,20
 8:20 18:19,19
 18:23,24 27:16
 35:12,14,15,16
 35:20,21,23
 36:2,4,14
 37:23 38:2,20
 38:23,25 39:2
 39:14,21,23,25
 40:2 41:10,19
 41:22 42:1,4,9
 42:11 43:4,11
 43:14 44:4,9
 44:12 45:5,9
 45:13,16 46:4
 46:25 47:2,4,5
 47:7,21,22,25
 48:2 50:15
 53:14 65:5,23
chief's 23:21
children 34:18
 34:20,23 35:3
 44:21 52:22
chili 37:6,11
Christ 58:20
Christian 44:17
 52:22
church 7:10,11
 36:20 45:20
 58:20 59:10
churches 5:23,23
circulated 7:14
circumstances
 34:21
cities 31:20
Citizen 46:11
 62:15,18
citizens 40:10
 53:9,19 54:1,7
 55:23
city 5:11 14:10
 25:23 26:6
 29:12 31:12
 33:23 34:7
 41:19 43:16
 54:6 59:16
 61:18 63:5,14
 65:15
citywide 5:13
civilian 19:11
 20:17,18,21
 22:2 26:15
civilians 19:9
 20:12 21:4,5
class 6:11
classes 6:2
clearly 26:13
close 11:9,15
coffee 20:24
collect 17:12
come 8:11 9:18
 10:2 12:25
 14:11 21:2
 23:21,22 25:21
 32:12 40:13
 41:6 43:20
 48:17,19 63:18
comes 16:14 26:1
comfortable
 14:25 56:20
coming 5:10 6:11
 7:9,19 37:2
 45:14 46:6
 47:4 55:24
 56:18 65:20
COMMISSIONER 5:17
 5:21 6:6 11:6
 11:9 48:7,9,14
 59:4 66:10
command 5:9
commander 58:21
 58:22
commanders 6:17
commanding 7:4
commands 21:6
commendation
 53:8
comment 15:15
comments 18:14
 41:9

commission 6:21
 9:23 10:23,24
 12:17 13:22,23
 14:18,19,22
 15:3,6 17:16
 22:16 27:12,15
 27:18,19 28:20
 30:1 57:11
 60:2
commissioner 2:4
 2:5,6,7,8,9,10
 3:1,5,5,7,7,8
 3:8,10,12,12
 3:13,13,15,15
 3:17,17,19,19
 3:21,24,25 4:2
 4:3,4,7,9,11
 4:12,15,25 5:1
 5:4,18,22,25
 6:1,4,4,5,7,23
 6:24 7:2,13,17
 8:7,8,23 9:3,3
 9:9,10,11,12
 9:14,15,17,20
 9:22,24 10:1,3
 10:8,10,16,18
 10:19,20,20,22
 11:1,3,5,12,13
 12:2,12 13:5,8
 13:11,13,15
 15:14,20,20,25
 16:1,8,9,11,12
 16:13,16,19,21
 16:22,23,25
 17:1,4,7,17
 18:7,12,13,14
 18:16,17,18,23
 19:2 21:1 22:8
 22:16,18,20,21
 22:23,24,25
 23:16,25 24:1
 24:2,9,18,25
 25:1,1,2,17,20
 26:2,4,8,17,21
 27:3,4,5,6,7
 27:11 28:9,14
 28:18,21 29:1
 29:2,3,8 30:6
 30:7,8,11,19
 30:20 31:4,6,8
 31:18,19,23
 32:1,4,8,8,11

32:14,16,20,21
 32:24 33:1,2,4
 33:6,8,9 34:9
 34:10,12,16,22
 35:1,4,8,9,11
 35:15,19,22
 36:1,3,13
 37:21,25 38:17
 38:22,24 39:1
 39:19,20,21,24
 40:1 41:8,11
 41:19,24 42:3
 42:5,6,10,23
 43:9,12,24,25
 44:1,2,10,22
 44:22,24,25
 45:2,3,4,8,11
 45:15,18,18,20
 45:21 46:1,2,5
 46:9,10,11,16
 46:22 47:23
 48:1,3,8,10,12
 48:16,21,22,23
 49:11,12,17,18
 49:20,21,22
 50:9,10,11,16
 50:24 51:2,4,7
 51:9,12,17,23
 52:1,7,9,11,14
 54:11,12,15,20
 54:24,25 55:6
 55:6 56:11,23
 56:25 57:1,2,3
 57:4,5,19,24
 58:1,2,3,4,6,7
 58:9,12,14,15
 58:17 59:3,5,7
 59:14,24 60:5
 60:6,9,11,12
 60:13,14,15,18
 60:22,23 61:1
 61:2,4,6,7,14
 61:17,18,19,21
 61:22,23,23
 62:1,3,5,5,16
 62:19,21,25
 63:2,6,22,25
 64:2,22 65:4
 65:13,15,17
 66:2,9,11,14
commissioners
 1:6 2:1 4:6,14

6:3 7:12 9:6
 16:23 19:6
 23:23 27:18
 41:8 42:22
 48:13 49:6
 50:8 54:1,14
 56:19 58:18
 66:13
commitment 53:21
 54:6
committed 60:7
committee 12:24
 12:24 14:17
 15:24 17:16,20
 17:22 18:9
 46:7,8,12
 50:25 57:6,10
 57:21
communities 47:6
 53:20
community 1:8
 7:15 23:3
 37:19 38:9
 43:15,21 47:6
 53:14,24 55:8
 55:12 56:7
 58:25 60:1
 65:10
companies 59:18
company 64:15
Compensation
 31:13
Complaint 46:12
complicated 15:7
composed 14:17
comprehensive
 11:17 12:21
 13:4 15:2 29:4
concern 15:24
concerned 20:7
concerns 22:21
 30:10 34:11
 56:13
concur 59:3
condolences
 38:19
conduct 24:21
conducted 17:15
coney 37:7,7
conference 45:7
confidentiality
 18:15

confirmation 5:2
confuse 5:24
Congress 62:2
conjunction
 32:22 40:4
connect 34:6
connection 14:1
 40:6,11 55:18
Conrad 13:8
consider 55:2
consideration
 16:20
considered 28:22
considering
 26:10
consistent 20:16
consoling 7:7
consummate 53:23
contact 14:2
 23:4,15 31:11
 44:6,7 55:22
continuation
 55:12
continue 20:15
continuing 19:14
 20:23
contrary 6:22
contribute 44:5
contributes
 25:24
convention 49:1
 49:10
conversation
 24:22
conversations
 24:13
cook-off 37:6,9
 37:11
cooperation 66:6
coordinate 31:12
cop 53:11
copies 17:19
corporation
 13:20,21 14:1
 14:2,3 15:8,17
correct 18:12
 39:5 46:6
 51:13 66:2
cost 42:24
costs 42:13
counsel 13:20,21
 14:1,2,3 15:9

15:17 53:16
counseling 7:7
counselor 29:14
country 37:14
 43:16 61:19
county 5:11
 39:16
couple 30:17
 36:4 48:23
 54:22
course 8:10,17
 44:7
Court 8:15
cover 18:3
covered 43:1
Craig 18:19
Crawford 2:6
 3:15,15 6:4
 8:8 9:17,22
 10:1,19,20,22
 11:1 13:15
 15:14,20,25
 16:8,16 18:17
 27:4,6 28:9,14
 28:18 32:9,11
 32:14,16,20
 57:3,5 58:12
credit 40:22
 53:22
criteria 49:24
 49:24 50:3,4,6
 50:25 52:4
critical 12:22
criticism 66:4
currently 19:17
 21:14 22:1
curriculum 55:15
custody 37:17

D

data 24:23
date 20:5
daughter 47:1
Davis 8:21
day 6:13,20 11:3
 18:10 26:24
 29:11,13 48:19
 53:3 64:12
days 17:21 48:14
DC 35:23
deadly 49:16
deal 11:24 29:16

dealing 12:6
 15:21
Deante 39:6
Dearborn 56:17
 57:9
death 25:22,25
 26:1,14,23
 27:23 31:21
 42:25 47:13
debating 60:19
deceased 33:6
 42:14
December 20:25
 22:1 56:12,15
 56:16 57:1,20
 59:1,1
decide 17:25
decision 56:24
 58:2
deck 48:6
decrease 36:8
dedicated 54:4
dedication 53:21
deescalation
 55:16
default 18:1
Defensive 50:13
definitely 57:7
defrayed 42:13
degree 11:20
 55:15
delays 21:18
delegated 14:12
 14:25
deliver 12:17
department 7:15
 17:9 18:2
 21:16 23:1,11
 33:11 37:19
 38:4 47:8
 52:18 53:19,22
 54:2 56:3
 57:17 59:15
department's
 12:18 13:4
departments 37:8
 37:8
depend 34:19
depending 31:10
 34:21
depends 23:19
 34:15,17

deputy 18:19,23
 18:24 35:12,14
 46:25 47:4,7
 47:21,22,25
 48:2
Dequindre 36:18
DERRICK 2:9
description 14:7
detail 29:5
Detention 52:24
Detroit 1:6,12
 1:14 5:6 7:10
 10:14 20:16,17
 20:21,22 23:1
 26:7 37:4,14
 38:13,14 40:3
 40:11,12 41:20
 41:25 43:23
 49:2,6 50:7
 52:18,24 53:19
 53:19,22,25
 54:2,2,6 58:21
 59:16,18,23
 61:19,20 65:25
DetroitMI.gov...
 23:10
DetroitMI.gov...
 23:7
devotion 53:20
Dewaelsche 2:8
 3:19,20 4:2
 17:17 18:12
 25:2,17,20
 26:2,4,8,17,21
 27:7 28:21
 32:24 33:2,6
 44:22,25 45:3
 54:11,20,25
 55:7 56:23
 57:1,24 58:2,4
 58:7,14 64:2
 66:9
dialogue 62:17
Diaz 30:14
dictate 26:16
died 38:7
difference 35:18
differences 61:8
different 13:16
difficult 41:13
Dignity 42:22
diligence 30:4

32:5 46:23
direct 15:10
directly 14:17
 14:21 23:22
 31:15 33:25
 44:19 45:20
director 6:9,25
 8:12 19:1,3,4
 19:7 22:22
 23:5,19 24:3,7
 24:11,21 25:3
 25:8,19,23
 26:3,6,12,18
 27:10 28:5,10
 28:15 29:4,7
 31:3,5,7,9,20
 31:22,25 32:2
 32:7,13,15,18
 33:17 34:13,15
 34:17,24 35:2
 35:5,10,24
 42:21,24
discharged 21:8
discussion 4:5
 4:13 17:6
 30:24 54:13
 55:13,18 56:5
 56:10,11
discussions
 12:14
disease 49:16
disqualification
 25:12
disqualificat...
 25:14
disqualified
 19:19,19 23:20
 24:15 25:5
Dist 2:2,3,4,5,6
 2:7,10
distinction
 11:21 53:14
distress 29:15
district 3:2,14
 3:16,18 9:13
 9:14 22:18
 48:9,10 59:2
 60:10 64:11
dligent 54:4
doing 8:16 11:25
 15:22 21:6
 28:20 37:9,19

38:5 40:4
 44:14 57:9
Dolunt 2:18
 18:19 35:12,14
 35:16,21,23
 36:2,4,14
 37:23 38:2,20
 38:23,25 39:2
 39:14,23,25
 40:2 41:10,22
 42:1,4,9,11
 43:4,11,14
 44:9,12 45:5,9
 45:13,16 46:4
 47:5 50:15
domestic 50:5
double 39:3
 55:17
Douglas 6:17
downsized 48:18
downtown 49:2
DPD 12:14 24:4
 26:4 35:13
 46:6 65:22
draft 57:6,12,13
 57:15
drafted 50:1
 55:3
Drake 8:17,20,21
 47:21,22,25
 48:2 65:5,12
driver's 25:11
driving 25:10,12
 25:15
DTE 59:16,25
due 15:17 30:3
 32:5 46:23
 51:18,24
Duggan 65:9
duplication
 21:24
dutifully 52:23
duty 21:12 22:10
 29:17 30:23

E

E 2:4
E.M 28:6
earlier 12:3
 46:20 55:17
ease 18:17
easily 37:2

east 4:23
eastside 5:6,23
 7:10
eat 37:11
Ebenezer 5:20
 7:12,13 36:20
Ecorse 64:6
Edgar 2:10 3:13
educate 23:2
effort 21:13
 22:2 30:20
 50:21
efforts 50:4
eight 52:25 54:4
either 25:11
 28:6 35:6 55:4
elaborate 31:2
 32:10 36:13
 37:22
Elaine 39:11,12
elected 28:17
 62:3
Electric 59:25
elects 28:13
eliminating
 21:23,23
Elmwood 58:20
eluded 42:13
EM 31:11 32:13
 35:6
embrace 7:16
employee 25:23
 26:14
employees 21:16
EMS 41:16
encounter 11:10
 11:15 48:3
energizing 59:16
Energy 59:16
energy-savings
 59:19
enforcement
 26:23 27:12
 40:6 53:7,24
engage 28:23
 50:7
engaged 48:13
engaging 47:14
enlightening
 64:8
ensure 31:15
entailed 65:2

entering 9:4
entertain 51:11
 52:3,5 66:8
entertaining
 46:23
entities 5:10
entitled 31:1
entrance 25:9
equate 29:11
equipment 59:20
Ernest 6:15
especially 30:22
 41:14 60:5
essentially
 14:11 17:18
 18:1 55:21
establish 19:24
Eva 2:8 3:19
EVENING 1:8
event 58:19
everybody 41:5
exact 28:3
exactly 6:1 30:5
 54:21
exception 42:25
excuse 9:17
 13:12
excused 9:4
executive 8:1
 22:11 31:5
expand 27:9
expectation
 12:17 17:20
expectations
 15:10
experience 11:23
explain 51:8,9
extended 38:14
extensive 10:6
extensively
 30:21 33:22

F

fact 30:13
facts 56:20
fairly 8:2 15:7
fallen 29:17,25
families 6:13
 29:13,14,14,16
 29:19,24 33:13
 33:16 47:17
 65:24

family 7:16,18
 30:25 31:15
 36:21 38:14,15
 39:7 42:17
 43:8,18 44:7
 44:16,19 65:21
far 15:22 24:10
 31:21 49:10
 55:13
fatal 37:15
father 39:6
 52:21
favor 4:5,13
 54:13 66:12
federal 5:10
 27:25 38:5
feel 28:24 29:23
 58:11
feelings 63:14
 63:15
fellow 53:12
fellowship 47:20
 47:20
felony 25:14
felt 6:20
females 40:18
fifteen 17:14
Fifth 47:11
fight 40:16
fighters 27:24
fighting 40:18
 50:5
fill 15:9
filled 19:9
final 15:12
 19:15 24:12
finality 57:15
finance 12:14
financial 10:13
 10:15
financially
 27:23
find 21:8 27:1
 27:19 28:19
 39:9,17 60:25
fire 27:24 30:23
 37:8,16,23,25
 38:4 41:15
 47:19
firefighters
 29:18
first 7:24 13:2

25:21 27:22,22
 27:22 29:19
 36:5
fiscal 8:3 19:12
fit 14:22
fits 49:24
five 5:6 9:14
fix 25:13
flag 43:17
fliers 63:11
floor 18:25 49:8
 51:24,25 60:16
 61:24 62:3,4
flush 56:13
follow 37:22
follow-up 19:18
 21:6
following 20:4
 56:1
football 50:12
force 55:13,16
 55:23 56:6
forgot 27:11
 40:2
form 14:16 62:2
formal 22:10
former 6:17
 43:18
formerly 9:22
 13:25 14:5,16
forth 14:10
forthcoming
 22:11 59:6
forum 63:9 65:6
 65:8
forward 3:25 7:8
 7:21 11:1,11
 12:5,7 13:5
 15:12 32:5
 41:14 46:6
 49:25 56:16,21
 58:24 61:25
 66:6
forwarded 21:1
found 21:17,21
 38:8 43:4
foundation 44:14
four 20:21 21:15
 39:7 44:21
fox 15:18 37:6
 44:3
frankly 36:25

frequently 23:2
23:13
Friday 5:15, 16
5:19 36:16
52:25
front 9:1 56:15
frustration
62:22
full 28:7 42:24
fund 26:2, 3, 5, 6
37:3
funeral 7:9
36:11, 17, 18
41:23, 24 42:2
42:13, 17 45:21
45:24 64:13
further 27:9
future 24:5

G

Gail 6:9, 25 8:25
19:4 42:19
gaps 21:17, 21
Garza 2:8 3:19
Gas 59:21
general 26:2, 3, 5
26:6 27:21
generally 25:9
56:7
Gertrude 8:5, 6
getting 31:17
37:1 40:8
43:16 56:20
give 9:24 22:12
36:5 38:9 62:9
62:22 63:20, 21
64:5 65:3
given 3:4 14:12
29:24
glad 47:17 64:15
64:24
glasses 18:25
go 8:18 12:7
17:11 18:24
23:7, 22 24:13
29:9 30:23
33:22 34:14
37:10 41:14
44:19 47:1
49:15, 24 55:10
55:25 56:21
63:15

goal 57:19
God 38:8
goes 47:12
GoFundMe 44:17
45:3
going 3:2, 6, 25
6:10 7:6, 9, 17
8:11 12:24
14:21, 23 15:3
15:4 16:15
21:20 22:1
24:22 30:9
34:1 35:17
37:5 39:4, 8
40:9, 10, 25
43:17 44:8
46:12 52:7
54:17 55:8, 12
55:14 59:8, 9
59:11 60:19
62:10, 14, 23
63:5, 9, 10, 16
65:1
good 5:13 6:12
8:23 9:9 10:5
19:3, 6 21:3
22:18 34:9
37:1, 12 38:3, 6
45:15 58:10
61:2
government 27:20
30:5 62:2
Grace 5:21, 22
37:6
graduated 6:1
10:13 53:4
graduating 6:19
52:19
graduation 5:16
grafted 30:9
grant 17:24, 25
Gratiot 42:2, 11
great 6:7, 19
7:10 11:24
12:4 29:5 34:9
48:2 59:7
Greater 5:21, 22
greatest 55:22
Green 45:6 59:13
59:17
GREGORY 2:12
grieving 38:13

group 24:14, 16
49:9 50:21
guess 5:7
guided 33:11
guiding 33:24
gun 41:3 64:1
gunned 37:20
guns 41:4
guys 40:22 43:14
43:20

H

Hall 35:23 47:7
Halloween 47:13
handed 13:7
handle 31:13
handled 43:2
hands 8:3 48:6
hang 46:25
Hanson 8:15
happen 21:10
29:12 32:19
happened 43:6
happening 37:13
58:11
hate 12:11
hatred 66:3
head 51:19
headquarters
1:12 44:15
hear 4:20 5:7
7:1 17:21
30:14 47:17
49:4 61:12
heard 13:25 14:5
49:12 57:21
63:5
hearing 61:11, 14
62:8
hearings 13:1
Heights 64:18, 20
64:21, 22 65:16
65:17
held 41:20 63:10
hello 9:21
help 10:14 11:24
31:16 33:15
41:4 43:7 44:5
50:14
helped 49:15
hen 15:19 47:2
Hicks 2:12 3:23

7:22, 23 8:10
8:25 9:7 10:2
11:12, 14 12:10
12:13 13:7, 12
13:17, 19 16:25
17:2, 5, 8 18:13
46:18, 19, 22
55:11 65:5
Hicks' 5:2
High 53:5
high-efficiency
59:19
higher 26:24
highest 54:7
highlights 5:8
22:12
highly 53:22
hired 19:20
20:12, 20 33:10
33:18
hires 20:11, 21
20:22
historic 7:10
hoc 46:7, 8
hold 15:1 50:2
home 36:17, 18
42:2, 14, 17
64:13
homicides 36:6
honor 21:13, 17
honorable 16:6
honoring 52:15
honors 9:25
hope 10:15 30:1
58:23 65:20
hopeful 48:20
hopefully 7:17
45:23 58:10
59:10
hoping 10:7
55:24
hosted 58:19
59:1
hosting 58:24
hour 36:21
hours 38:12 66:1
house 6:16 15:19
30:12, 13 47:2
HR 8:12 9:1 14:6
19:1 24:2
31:20
Hughes 6:16, 17

husband 48:11
52:21

I

identified 17:14
immediate 22:17
implement 14:13
implementing
21:22
important 14:19
21:16 23:2
27:20
improvement
21:13
improvements
21:22
increased 29:20
indemnify 33:15
indicate 8:14
11:14,19
indicated 9:7
12:14,16 13:9
individual 37:16
37:17 38:8,11
39:3,15
individuals 8:19
15:3 17:19,24
information 19:8
20:15 23:11,14
27:10 28:6,8
32:3,6 33:12
33:14,15,20
34:7 35:7
38:18 43:5
49:19 56:16
59:5 60:4 65:2
informations
56:18
initially 41:20
input 64:5
inquire 54:21
inquiring 45:1
inside 14:10
install 59:18
instance 14:15
14:19
Institute 40:4
40:13
insurance 28:11
34:2
integrity 53:21
54:5

intent 10:17
11:17
interact 7:5,18
50:24
interacted 5:2
47:5
interacting 6:15
12:5 46:24
interaction 13:6
14:21
interest 19:18
interested 19:17
40:14
Internment 36:22
internship 20:23
interview 14:18
introduce 7:22
7:24 35:13
introduces 8:18
introduction 3:6
11:17
investigator
8:17,20,21,22
65:5,12
invitations 21:1
invited 60:1
invocation 3:3,4
involve 18:11
involved 11:18
30:16
involving 15:2
ironic 39:4
island 37:7,7
issue 12:6,9
15:21 16:14,17
27:16 32:6
45:23 55:1,8
56:21 57:22
62:14
issues 15:22
16:2 21:8 25:6
30:18 32:9
55:16 56:8
item 4:7,17 7:21
35:11 62:8
items 28:11

J

Jako 6:16,16
Jarrett 18:21
36:15,23 42:16
43:7 44:13,20

52:13,16,17,20
52:23 53:1,4,8
53:10,18 54:8
Jarrett's 54:4
65:21
Jermain 38:23
Jermaine 39:13
Jerome 49:13
50:18
job 14:7 26:22
38:3,6 54:8
Johnny 7:5
Johnson 8:5,9
9:18,20 10:5,9
10:11,17,25
11:4,8,11,18
11:20 12:16
35:24
Johnson's 12:19
join 21:2 22:25
23:3,6 30:19
30:20
joining 7:25
Joy 58:23
jump 41:3

K

Kansas 43:16
keep 18:15 65:21
65:22
Keros 37:6
kick 40:17
kids 40:7,17
47:15,17
killed 22:9
30:22 36:15
38:11
kind 15:9 25:5
25:15 29:18,18
29:23,24 33:21
38:12 40:14
56:5,6 57:11
kinds 18:4 25:6
34:3
knew 39:23,24
know 5:23 6:9
7:6 12:4 15:15
15:22 16:5,6
23:1,6 24:2,4
24:10,10,17
25:3 26:1,10
26:12,23 28:1

28:2,20,21
29:10,12,20
30:21 31:1,20
31:22,23 35:2
35:5 36:15
37:25 38:20
40:21,22 41:12
42:12 43:22
44:2 45:23
46:2,3 47:5,7
48:4 49:15
50:16 57:15,16
59:8 60:14
63:9,11,13,15
63:16,18,18
64:9,10,13,14
65:1,7,8
knowledge 14:22
Kyra 58:23

L

LA 31:21
lack 19:18
laid 36:17
Lamar 22:11 28:6
31:5,12 32:12
32:13,15,15,17
35:6
language 55:3
Lansing 30:10,15
large 3:9
largely 12:18
late 43:5
latest 14:7
Lauer 59:25
law 17:9 26:22
27:12 40:6
53:7,23
leaders 32:22
learn 61:15
leave 21:11
LeDuff 37:6
left 3:10 44:3
legal 15:21
18:17 26:19
legally 16:2
Legendary 6:16
legislation
30:10
let's 18:24
20:16 33:11
54:18

letter 13:20
 14:4 30:9
letters 23:16,17
 43:16 53:8
level 5:10,11,11
 5:11
levels 30:4
liaison 31:11
Library 40:3,12
license 25:11
Lieutenant 35:24
life 28:11 38:8
Light 45:6 59:13
 59:17
lighting 59:19
liked 53:15
limit 35:6
line 22:10 30:23
link 23:8
Lions 50:13
Lisa 2:5 22:18
list 21:15
little 6:8 9:19
 10:11 21:5
 29:25 63:16
live 22:1
lives 41:12 66:1
lobbied 27:16
 30:21
lobby 27:19
 28:22,23
lobbyists 30:15
local 60:1
locally 49:5
located 59:22
 65:1
location 46:2
lock 39:14
long 6:8,22 35:5
 48:19
look 6:18 13:4
 14:20 19:14
 22:13 23:14
 24:19 29:10
 45:22 51:20
 55:15,20 57:8
 57:10,20 58:24
looked 6:14
looking 11:1,11
 12:5 13:5 15:2
 15:11 18:3
 24:4 32:5

39:11 43:22
 50:3 56:16
Looks 6:24
lose 36:11 40:23
lost 7:1 21:5
 40:21 41:12
 66:1
lot 23:12,17
 29:22 45:16
loved 6:13 53:6
 53:11
lovely 47:1
loving 52:21
low 4:22 20:6,9
 26:9,9 28:22
Lyndon 5:9

M

M-codes 19:14,22
 20:1 22:6
ma'am 10:10 28:9
 28:18 32:20
 33:4 39:20,25
 54:19,24 55:6
 57:2 58:1
 62:21 63:22,25
 65:4
Mack 6:17
Madison 64:18,20
 64:21,22 65:16
 65:17
main 40:11
majority 14:20
making 8:13
 21:22 33:14
 43:19 46:12
Mallett 13:8,9
man 53:13
management 21:25
 55:19
manager 8:1
 22:11 31:5
Marathon 59:21
Mark 30:14
MAS 55:19
material 17:23
matter 43:12
 46:5
matters 10:15
mayor 47:17
 59:24 65:8,9
McNichols 59:23

60:9
mean 39:12 49:13
 50:19 61:10
 63:19
means 48:5 50:4
media 8:14 40:8
 59:14
medical 31:10
 34:13,18
meet 25:9 50:4,6
 50:25 52:4
meeting 1:8 3:2
 9:8 11:15,25
 13:10 47:11
 49:23 51:16
 55:2,8,12 56:1
 58:18,25 60:7
 62:25 63:1
 65:10
meetings 13:23
 15:5,7 54:23
 56:7
member 37:18
 38:13,14
members 14:17
 15:6 17:21
 60:1
Memorial 42:22
mention 45:11
 59:13 63:24
mentioned 12:3
 20:12 22:4
 64:13
merit 54:7
messed 38:6
metropolitan
 37:9 52:19
mic 10:2,9 18:18
 35:12 62:11
Michigan 1:14
 27:12,13 42:3
 58:21 59:22,23
mind 18:15 30:2
 33:10
minds 37:13
minimum 25:9
minister 59:10
minutes 4:8 62:9
moment 18:20,22
moments 53:12
Monday 5:12 7:9
 11:4 19:21

36:20
monetary 34:14
month 19:8 20:20
 21:3,14 49:2,3
 55:5 56:14,15
months 30:17
Moore 2:3 3:17
 3:17 4:3,11
 5:3,5 6:23 7:2
 16:11,13,21
 18:16 22:23,25
 23:16 30:6,8
 30:19 41:19,24
 43:9,12 49:17
 49:21 51:23
 52:7,11,14
 58:17 59:5,14
 60:9 65:15
morning 37:15,20
mother 49:14
 50:18
motion 4:15 49:8
 51:24,25 52:2
 52:5,5 54:15
 55:4 60:15
 66:8,14
move 3:24 4:9
 7:8,21 11:24
 51:22 54:10
 57:22 58:10
 60:20 61:24
 62:5 66:6
moved 4:2,4,12
 54:12 63:7
 66:9,11
moving 20:14
 47:18 62:6
MPO's 47:10
murder 39:18
murders 39:7
Myron 18:20
 52:15,17 53:1
 53:10 54:4,8

N

NACo 56:18
name 38:18 39:10
 39:13 42:19
 50:13,13 61:10
 62:9,20
names 61:15
Nassar 59:25

nationwide 65:25
naturally 5:6
navigate 31:16
nays 66:14
need 13:24 15:16
 16:5 29:22
 30:13 33:12
 37:12 58:8
needs 29:18
neighboring
 53:20
Nelson 8:22, 24
Network 49:8, 15
new 7:25 20:11
 20:21, 22 22:1
 22:2
news 5:13
newspaper 44:23
NFL 50:11
nice 50:20 53:13
night 4:21 5:3
 5:12 40:16, 22
 47:11
nights 4:22
Nine 5:6
nineteen 36:6
Ninth 60:7
nonfatals 36:7
nonresidents
 20:18, 19
noon 36:21
normal 49:11
note 13:7
Noted 27:3
notification 9:5
November 1:10
 4:1 12:17
 52:18 55:1, 2
 56:9, 12 58:18
 59:21
number 13:21
 19:15 20:9
 21:15
numbers 5:7
 19:12 20:15
 21:12 22:13
 24:19
numerous 53:8

O

observed 18:22
obtained 14:6

Obviously 36:24
occasion 40:15
occur 27:24
occurring 25:6
OCI 47:23 48:1
October 4:8 19:8
 19:20 20:11, 20
 49:3 52:25
 54:21
odd 21:5
offer 33:13, 15
 33:23
offered 22:13
offering 59:17
office 2:17
 17:13 18:3
 21:19 23:22
 24:3, 6 31:14
 39:16 44:3
 46:15 64:6
officer 5:16 6:2
 6:15, 18 7:1, 4
 18:20 23:8, 9
 26:22 28:13
 29:11 30:22
 35:25 36:15, 23
 40:21 42:16
 43:7 47:14
 52:13, 15, 19, 23
 53:1, 4, 8, 10, 13
 53:18 54:3, 8
 65:21
officers 6:10
 7:6 22:9, 14
 25:18 29:16, 21
 29:25 31:21
 33:7, 10 34:4, 6
 40:9 41:2, 12
 41:15 42:15
 43:18 53:12
 64:4, 4, 8, 10
 65:23 66:1
official 62:3
oh 11:8 38:22
 40:2 47:23
 59:4, 13 64:22
okay 5:18 6:24
 9:3 11:8, 11
 13:11 15:22
 17:10 18:13
 22:21 23:5
 24:25 26:8, 17

31:6, 8 33:4
 34:16 35:1, 4
 35:16, 22 36:1
 36:4 38:22
 42:23 43:24
 46:6 48:1, 12
 48:20 59:14
 64:22 65:13, 17
old 54:18 58:15
older 39:3
oldest 44:18
once 27:19 28:19
 47:11 56:5
 62:2
ones 6:13
ongoing 58:5
online 23:7 28:1
operating 55:20
opinion 15:19
opportunity 4:23
 5:3 7:4 13:24
 29:15 34:6
 46:25 48:24, 25
opposed 4:15
 20:9 54:15
option 59:18
optional 28:11
options 23:3
 28:13, 16, 17, 17
order 3:2 7:8
 8:2 13:25 23:8
 52:2, 5, 12
 56:22 60:20, 23
 61:1, 4 62:6
ordinance 26:15
organization 8:4
 42:14, 18, 19
 55:21
organizations
 33:25
orientation
 24:12 33:18, 21
 33:21
originally 15:8
outline 11:18
outpouring 43:15
outside 33:24
 61:9 63:19
outstanding 6:2
 7:1 35:9 48:16
oversight 11:25
 11:25

Oxendine 8:12, 25
 19:3, 4, 7 23:5
 23:19 24:7, 11
 24:21 25:8, 19
 25:23 26:3, 6
 26:12, 18 28:5
 28:10, 15 29:4
 29:7 31:3, 5, 7
 31:9, 22, 25
 32:2, 7, 13, 15
 32:18 33:17
 34:13, 15, 17, 24
 35:2, 5, 10
 42:21, 24

P

p.m 1:10 58:19
 59:20, 21 66:16
page 20:14 23:9
 45:3
Pamela 8:21
Pardon 32:16
 64:19
parishioners
 59:10
Park 58:20
part 17:11 38:1
 38:2 39:4
 47:12
participation
 15:11
particular 14:15
 14:24 21:4
 30:23 32:6
 45:24
particularly
 20:6
pass 20:6
passed 17:18
 20:8 30:11
 53:3
Pastor 7:11
pastors 7:11
pause 54:18
pay 25:25
PD 56:17
pending 17:12
pension 28:12
people 6:9 16:6
 20:1, 2 21:7
 22:6 24:14, 16
 25:4, 13 40:25

41:1 44:4,6
 47:10 53:16
 61:14 63:14,17
 63:19 64:8
percent 41:4
period 25:25
permanent 25:7
 25:14
permanently
 19:19
permission 63:8
 63:20
person 7:25 8:1
 8:5 13:21
 14:21 15:9,12
 17:9 22:25
 31:11,14 44:6
 62:3
personally 25:20
 26:8
personnel 17:16
 17:20,22 18:9
 19:5 35:13
 65:22
perspective
 40:15
pertaining 27:17
phone 36:10,15
Phonetic 6:16
physical 19:22
 20:7
pick 18:10
piece 58:11
pilot 56:2
Pistons 40:3,12
pivot 55:25
place 5:19 12:16
 12:20 44:11
 57:18 59:20
placed 51:24
plan 55:11
planning 56:7
plate 45:17
played 53:6
player 50:12
please 3:3 18:21
 21:2 62:9
pleasure 10:5,12
point 12:23 17:5
 23:19 24:8
 28:10 38:17
 59:12 60:22

61:1,4 62:6
police 1:6 2:17
 6:20 19:5 23:1
 23:8,8,10,23
 26:22 27:24
 29:11,16,21
 30:23 31:10
 37:8 38:14
 40:10 41:2,15
 44:15 49:6
 50:7 52:15,18
 52:19 53:1,13
 53:14,19,22
 54:1,2,3 64:4
 64:10 65:23
policy 57:6,6,8
 57:11,12,13,16
 57:21
poor 25:11
position 8:1
 13:3 14:8,9,9
 19:17 33:13
positions 19:9
positive 53:11
possibility
 26:23
possible 32:11
post 5:9
posthumously
 52:16 54:3
potential 14:18
potentially
 55:22
prayers 65:21,22
precinct 5:4 7:5
 44:16 47:1,11
 47:14 52:20,24
 52:25 58:19,22
 59:2,2,8,9
 60:7
preparations
 37:1
preparatory
 19:25 22:5
prepare 12:19
prepared 9:1
 12:7 17:24
 45:14 51:19
present 43:18
presentation
 32:25 40:5
presented 60:3

presenting 39:15
president 28:2
 59:24
presidential
 61:11
press 45:6
pretty 20:15
 21:18 38:6
 45:21
prior 5:15 7:18
 20:4
prison 39:7
privilege 16:14
 16:15 17:8
 18:14
privileges 16:18
probable 39:17
probably 4:19
 6:11 15:12
 17:20 20:25
 23:12 26:15,20
probationarily
 21:7
problem 12:12
 20:2
procedure 60:21
procedures 46:15
 46:15
proceedings
 66:16
process 18:11
 19:18 21:13,17
 21:21 24:15
 26:10,13 47:13
 49:23 50:2,23
 51:3,5,8,10,13
 51:14,18 52:2
 52:4,6
processes 12:20
products 13:24
profession 16:7
professional
 53:11,13,23
professionalism
 54:5
profile 4:22
program 19:25
 20:23,24 22:6
 38:1,3 42:22
 43:1 56:2
 59:17
project 37:16,24

45:6 59:17
projects 21:12
prominent 5:23
proper 7:19 40:5
 60:21
properly 4:4,12
 66:11
Prosecutor's
 39:16
protect 33:13
proud 6:9,20
provide 28:7,16
 31:11 34:5,7,8
 49:18 52:8,9
provided 33:20
providers 43:2,3
provision 35:3
public 1:12
 11:21 40:3,11
 49:25 51:15
 54:5 61:9 62:8
push 19:15
put 12:20 15:4
 18:25 49:7
 56:5 59:11
 60:15 64:25
putting 37:7

Q

qualifications
 25:10
question 13:16
 23:1 24:8,16
 24:17,24 25:3
 25:18 31:20
 50:22 55:23
 56:2
questions 4:5
 22:14,21 23:12
 23:13 27:8
 34:10 39:18
 41:7,8 55:25
quite 36:25
quo 18:1
quorum 3:22,23

R

R 2:3
race 61:11
raise 27:2
raised 28:24
raiser 37:3

raising 26:10
 32:9
ran 53:7
random 39:22
randomly 41:1
rate 20:6 29:22
reach 31:13 59:9
reached 22:8
readily 16:5
really 4:21 5:12
 5:13 6:13,19
 6:20 15:23
 21:3 27:8 29:8
 30:15 37:12,22
 38:3,6 41:17
 43:21 47:3,10
 48:17 53:13
 56:4 58:7
reasons 12:15
 25:4 63:20
recall 28:5
receipt 14:3
receive 23:20
received 7:16
 53:8
recognition
 21:15 29:24
 54:3
recognize 48:6
 50:20
recommendation
 46:13
recommendations
 46:14 57:21
reconnected
 40:23
record 8:20 19:4
 24:23 25:12
 29:9
records 21:24,25
 25:10,14,15
recruit 22:2
recruiting 19:12
reference 4:20
 7:3 30:21
 56:20
refresher 25:4
refute 57:12
regard 30:3 54:7
 55:16,24
regarding 25:18
 30:10

regards 30:9
 64:5
REGINALD 2:6
rejected 23:18
 23:20
related 14:9
relates 46:15
relation 32:6
relative 56:3
relatively 12:21
rely 16:7
remarks 6:21 7:3
 10:21
remember 42:20
 54:21
remind 60:15
Renaissance 49:2
Renee 39:12,13
rep 28:23
report 4:18 5:13
 6:11 8:13 9:2
 19:1 22:8,10
 28:7 39:16
 41:11 45:20
 46:21
reported 21:14
reporting 5:5
 8:15 19:8
reports 46:7,8
represent 6:20
representative
 4:21
REPRESENTING
 2:17
reps 27:19
request 55:2
requesting 17:25
 56:9
research 13:24
 27:1,14 28:1
residency 20:14
residents 20:17
 20:17,21,22
 47:9
resist 61:7
resolution 7:3
 49:7,19,23
 50:2,23,25
 51:18 52:6,12
 52:15 54:3
 61:2,20
resolved 45:24

53:25
respect 15:18
 20:11 51:18,24
 63:3
respected 38:4
 53:23
respectful 62:10
respond 62:13,15
 62:16,23
responded 19:16
responders 27:22
 27:22
response 27:23
responsibilities
 12:8
responsibility
 12:1,3 31:9
rest 11:19
restricted 21:12
resume 18:8
return 56:2
review 8:3 12:21
 17:15,23 51:20
 57:10,14
Ricardo 2:3 3:17
 5:3
RICHARD 2:7
right 3:6 16:3
 22:17,17 28:4
 35:20 38:1,6
 38:21 45:2,4
 51:15,16 58:6
 62:2 63:4 64:3
Road 59:22,23
robberies 36:8
Robert 8:11
Roberts 60:16
roles 22:3
room 9:4 50:19
Roseville 42:9
Ross 40:4,13
Rule 60:16
ruling 18:2
rush 41:5
rushes 41:5

S

S-a-c-h-a 44:13
Sacha 44:13,20
 52:21
sacrifices 29:19
sad 64:12

saddened 65:24
sadness 63:5
safety 1:12
 49:25
salaries 29:20
 29:21
salesperson
 33:14 34:5
salute 54:8
Sanders 2:9 3:7
 3:8,8 4:9 5:17
 5:21 6:4,6
 11:6,9 12:5
 48:7,9,14 59:3
 59:4 66:10
Sanford 39:6
satisfied 24:5,9
satisfy 56:14,23
Saturday 36:16
 36:19 37:3
 40:16 43:18
saw 44:23
saying 16:10,16
 29:9
says 35:19 45:6
schedule 13:1
 20:5 65:7
scheduled 11:16
 15:7 20:3,8,10
 39:15
scheduling 20:5
School 53:5
scoop 32:23
se 24:11
search 13:17
 18:8
seating 45:22
second 4:13 7:12
 7:13 36:20,25
 49:21 51:25
 54:18 59:1,8
seconded 60:16
secretary 2:12
 3:23 7:23 8:10
 8:25 9:7 10:2
 11:12,14 12:10
 12:13 13:7,12
 13:19 16:25
 17:2,5,8 30:9
 46:18,19 51:6
 52:7 55:7,11
 57:20

see 5:18 6:9,12
 6:18,25 8:23
 9:3,10 17:1
 19:15 20:2,7
 20:16 21:8
 22:7,18 24:3,9
 30:5,12 35:13
 40:14 47:10
 57:6 62:22
 63:12
seeing 6:8 25:5
 41:13
select 14:18
 23:7,10
selected 24:13
Senate 30:12
senator 28:23
send 38:18 44:14
senseless 38:11
 38:16
senselessly
 37:20 38:7,10
sent 43:17 45:5
Sergeant 37:3
serious 16:19
 56:21,21
serve 8:1
served 52:23
 53:14,18
service 8:14
 36:21 41:14
 53:1,21 54:5
services 8:15
 36:16,20,23
 43:1
set 34:19
setting 63:17
settle 61:9
Seventh 58:19,22
 59:2,9
shadow 43:17,19
share 38:17
 48:25 51:6
 63:14,14
shared 51:21
sheet 42:21
Shelby 2:7 3:12
 3:12 19:2 46:9
 46:11
shooting 37:15
 39:22 41:1
shootings 40:9

short 56:14,15
shot 37:17 40:9
 40:10
showing 20:3
 65:8
side 5:4 16:17
 30:24
silence 18:20,22
single 26:24
sir 3:10,22 9:9
 9:12 13:15
 16:12 17:4,7
 18:7,16 19:3
 24:1 25:2 27:5
 29:2,7 30:7
 32:7,10 36:3
 36:13 41:18
 44:1 45:25
 46:10,16 48:22
 50:24 51:4,17
 52:9 55:10
 57:4 60:13,19
 61:6
Sister 49:8,14
sitting 8:5,11
 9:1 18:19
six 36:25 43:6
sixteen 17:14
Sixth 52:20,24
size 47:19
Skateland 40:16
 40:17
small 14:16
Smith 62:20,23
 63:1,4,4,7,23
 64:1,3,19,21
 64:24
society 27:21
solid 10:12
somebody 16:5
 39:22 50:14
son 6:18 44:17
 44:18
Son's 36:17
sorry 10:9 13:8
 18:24 32:16
 37:21 39:9,18
 41:23 45:10,17
 54:17 59:23
 63:10
sort 13:1 44:6
Southeastern

53:5
speak 10:8 33:19
 62:13
speaker 60:3
 61:5 64:18,20
speaking 51:5
 54:1 64:10
special 21:12
specific 55:25
 56:9
specifically
 56:8
specifics 4:20
spirit 66:6
spoke 49:14
 50:17
sports 53:6
spouse 28:12
 34:22,25
squarely 14:8
squeeze 60:10
staff 7:22,25
 8:19 14:13,24
 14:25 19:23,24
 22:3,5 39:5
 48:5 65:6
stage 47:3
Stair 47:4
stand 8:6
standard 26:13
 54:6
standing 46:7,8
start 3:6
started 19:20
 44:18
state 5:11 21:15
 27:13,16,19
 28:20,22,23
 30:12 38:5
 53:6
stated 28:21
 53:15 63:8
station 44:15
 59:22
stations 44:4
stats 36:5
status 18:1
Steil 37:4,4
 43:5,19
steps 30:25
STEVEN 2:18
stood 47:2

stop 37:2 40:19
 53:2 59:11
 60:25
stopgap 16:1
stops 53:12
story 48:25
 50:17
straight 64:25
street 40:19
stronger 16:17
struck 53:2
structure 14:14
student 20:23
stuff 45:16
submit 13:24
success 19:25
successful 22:6
suggested 33:12
suggesting 51:1
SUITE 1:13
summaries 17:18
 17:19
Sunday 36:16,18
superiors 53:9
supervising 8:21
supplemental
 34:2
support 4:3,11
 7:16 14:16
 41:17 43:15
 54:11 65:21,23
 66:10
supported 4:5
 54:12 66:11
supporting 47:16
supportive 65:10
 66:3
sure 12:15 16:4
 21:9 26:19
 27:13 30:2,25
 32:18 33:19,20
 34:3 45:21
 46:1 49:20
 50:10 51:6
 56:13,19 58:23
 59:2
surrounding
 49:25
survey 21:15
 24:11,16,21
surveyed 24:19
surveying 24:8

surveys 24:3
surviving 34:18
survivor 27:13
 28:12 49:1,9
survivors 27:25
 49:5
Swan 36:17
Swanson 36:17
 38:23 42:2,7,7
 42:17 64:14,14
sworn 19:9,11
 20:12,16,18,22
 21:5 26:14
 37:18
Sylvia 45:5
system 21:25
 41:17 55:19
systems 55:19

T

table 16:3 57:23
TAC 6:15,18
tackles 49:16
take 13:3 16:19
 16:24 22:14
 30:25 37:12
 55:1,5 56:4,24
 59:20 62:11
takes 42:14
talk 12:23 27:21
 30:17 34:4
 40:20 51:14,19
 53:16 66:4
talked 36:11
 47:15 54:22
talking 50:18
tangible 44:5
taped 43:22
taping 8:15
tasers 54:22
 56:1,4,10
 57:16 63:24
teaching 53:12
team 31:12
technology 21:23
 22:1
television 44:4
tell 64:9
telling 64:6
temper 40:23
temporarily
 13:22 19:19

temporary 15:9
 15:21 16:1
 25:6,8,12
ten 39:4
term 6:8 47:16
terms 5:5 7:2
 15:5 17:6 18:4
 19:12 21:12
 24:14 25:13
 26:4 30:15,25
 31:1 33:23
 34:19 45:22,23
 46:21,23 47:16
 49:23 50:1,3,6
 50:7 55:3
 56:14,20 57:9
 57:20 65:25
test 19:23
testimonies 49:4
 49:13
thank 3:5,10,21
 3:24 7:19,23
 8:8,23 9:9,11
 9:12,15,15
 10:1,3,16,18
 10:19,22,25
 11:5 13:13
 15:14 18:7,13
 18:23 19:2,3
 22:20 24:25
 25:17 27:7,9
 28:25 29:6,7
 31:18 32:4,8
 32:20 33:4
 34:9,12 35:8,9
 35:10 36:3
 40:1 41:10,11
 42:17 43:9,13
 43:14,22 46:4
 46:16,19,22
 47:4,8,23 48:1
 48:5 50:11
 52:11 55:11
 58:14 59:12
 60:11 61:13,13
 62:12 63:2,2
 64:23 65:2,13
 65:17,19 66:7
 66:15
thanks 29:23
thing 7:19 12:10
 17:3 22:7

25:10 39:9
 40:11 45:6
 47:19
things 13:19
 15:5 21:16
 33:12 34:3
 36:5 37:19
 39:4 53:15
 63:13,23
think 7:7,18
 11:22 16:13,16
 18:2 19:1 23:2
 25:20,24 26:9
 27:22 28:3
 29:10,12,25
 30:1 39:9
 40:25,25 42:3
 42:12 48:19
 50:12,20 51:21
 55:7 56:16
 58:8,10,13
 61:8 63:16
thinking 26:21
 42:7
THIRD 1:13
Thomas 7:5
thought 63:17
thousand 39:4
three 4:22 35:13
 48:14
thrust 50:1
thumbs 6:25
Thursday 58:18
 59:21
tickets 53:15
tie 32:21 55:14
 56:18
Tillman 38:24,25
 39:13
time 15:10 18:10
 18:25 35:6
 36:24 39:8
 42:15,16 43:20
 46:6 48:2
 59:12 60:8,25
 61:15,20,24
 62:11 63:11
 65:3,11
timely 27:11
times 41:13
timing 12:4,22
tired 61:14

tirelessly 53:18
today 8:13,15,16
 9:16 13:10
 39:4 59:20
 64:12
today's 9:8
 44:23
told 40:20 63:9
tomorrow 11:14
 11:16 64:25
tonight 40:3
 45:7
top 25:15 43:7
 51:19
total 19:8,10
 20:12,16,17,18
 20:18 21:5
totally 60:18
tough 36:24 39:8
 39:8,8 43:20
track 53:7
tract 8:2
traffic 53:2,11
tragedies 37:13
tragedy 38:16
tragic 37:18
 47:13
Train 22:5
Trained 19:24
training 55:14
transcription
 8:16
transmitted
 13:20
travel 4:23
Travis 6:15
treat 47:15
trend 25:5
Trevor 59:25
true 60:18
trunk 47:15
try 12:25 27:1
 28:24 30:5
 38:15 41:4
 50:6 55:14
 57:22 59:12
 60:10 65:12
trying 12:18
 14:11 18:3
 38:9 40:5,6
 44:7 52:1
turn 8:18 18:18

turned 38:8
 turnout 59:7
 TV 63:15
 Twelfth 5:4 7:5
 44:16 47:1
 52:24
 twisted 5:25
 two 5:22 6:2
 12:6 13:19
 20:14 28:16
 30:14 32:22
 35:13 40:18
 41:12 57:14
 58:5 62:9 65:6
 65:25
 type 5:14 12:25
 13:5 26:22
 41:17 66:4
 types 56:8

U

unable 9:8 13:9
 unconscionable
 29:25
 understand 15:15
 15:24 16:8,9
 24:7 34:23
 41:12 44:17
 51:17
 understood 14:7
 undertaking 8:4
 underway 21:14
 22:2,4
 unfortunate 7:1
 29:15
 unfortunately
 43:6
 union 31:10,11
 32:22 33:18,19
 unions 30:14
 unit 22:3
 University 10:13
 53:6
 UNKNOWN 60:3
 64:18,20
 unwavering 53:20
 update 13:14
 updates 32:5
 urge 61:7
 use 53:11 55:13
 55:16,18,23
 56:5,17 64:7

ut 21:8

V

vacancies 14:13
 19:9,10,10
 Vann 2:10 3:3,5
 3:13,13 4:25
 5:25 7:11 29:1
 29:3,8 32:8
 33:9 34:9 39:1
 42:6 43:10,25
 44:2,10 45:21
 46:1 61:1,4,7
 61:14 62:6
 66:2
 variables 34:19
 variety 23:21
 various 37:8
 59:25
 vary 28:16
 vast 14:20
 vehicle 53:2
 vendors 34:1,4,6
 verbally 45:11
 51:9
 versed 31:7
 veteran 44:18
 vice 3:18 5:2
 46:24 52:3
 54:17 58:16
 Vice-Chairperson
 2:3
 viewing 41:25
 42:1 65:16
 violence 50:5
 visit 5:4,5 7:4
 visiting 5:8
 volunteer 38:1
 volunteers 41:16
 vote 17:23 56:12
 56:24 57:7,16
 60:17
 voted 28:2 30:13
 51:10

W

want 4:19 7:15
 7:19 8:14,18
 9:21 10:21,22
 12:22 14:15
 18:8 22:11,17
 23:3,5,6 26:10

27:9 28:10
 32:4,10 33:19
 34:5,11 37:10
 40:13 43:13
 44:4,5,12,19
 46:22 47:4,8
 47:24 48:5,24
 49:22 56:19
 57:22,25 58:12
 59:7,13 60:8
 60:14 61:12
 62:19,21,22
 63:13 65:9,19
 66:5,6
 wanted 7:24
 12:15 16:4
 56:4
 wants 22:25
 62:11
 Warren 42:3,4,10
 64:15 65:16
 Washington 35:24
 46:25
 wasn't 21:3
 37:18 39:22
 45:14 62:23
 waste 21:23
 way 21:19 24:18
 29:5 35:17
 48:19 56:6
 Wayne 39:16 53:6
 ways 23:21
 we'll 4:19 11:9
 18:1,15 27:14
 39:15 44:19
 45:24 51:5
 56:8
 we're 3:2 7:17
 11:1 12:18,24
 14:10 15:22
 17:5,22 18:3
 19:14 20:6
 21:6 22:4 30:2
 32:5 34:1
 36:24 37:3,5
 38:13 40:10,25
 43:16,17 44:7
 45:15 46:12
 55:14,20 56:16
 59:8
 we've 19:13 25:3
 29:20 40:8

46:12 48:19
 55:13 56:5
 web 23:9
 Wednesday 1:10
 20:25
 week 15:16 17:18
 54:21 63:8,10
 63:18 64:6
 weekend 5:14,19
 41:15 46:23
 weeks 36:25 43:6
 48:23
 weigh 18:10
 48:24
 welcome 8:7,9
 9:23 10:23
 40:13 41:6,17
 66:4
 went 4:25 28:3
 47:22 48:7,11
 weren't 42:15
 west 4:23 59:22
 59:22 60:9
 westside 4:24,25
 5:1
 westsider 16:21
 16:22
 westsiders 6:23
 60:6
 white 22:5 58:13
 White's 19:23
 wholesome 5:14
 wife 48:9 52:21
 Williams 35:25
 58:23
 Willie 2:2,4 3:1
 wish 59:18
 witness 5:9 6:12
 witnessed 6:14
 women 49:13
 50:19
 Woodlawn 36:22
 word 14:14
 work 8:16 11:18
 15:23 29:3,13
 29:13,14,22
 32:22 34:7
 50:21 58:13
 59:12 64:14
 worked 18:9 38:2
 41:15 42:12
 47:6,6

worker 29:12
Worker's 31:13
working 11:2,6
 14:4 15:23
 17:16 19:23
 22:4 31:1
 37:16 48:18
 64:11
workload 17:11
 18:4
works 31:15
workup 49:18
world 41:2 49:5
worthwhile 6:8
wrap 8:3 10:14
write 53:15
writing 51:3
written 19:22,22
wrong 39:5 51:14

X

Y

yeah 26:3 35:21
 59:4
year 15:13 19:13
 36:7 46:14
 47:18 49:10
 56:25
years 12:6 13:2
 29:17 53:1
 54:4 57:14
 58:5
yesterday 15:16
young 6:9 30:14
 47:14
youngest 61:18
 61:19
youth 40:7,15,24

Z

Ziggy 50:15
zoo 37:4,5,10

0

1

1 2:7
1,138 19:18
1,719 20:18
1,861 19:13
1:00 20:25

10 37:5,10,11
 58:18
10% 36:8
10,000 25:21
 26:9 29:9
100 19:17
102 20:8
11 20:22
11:00 36:21
12:00 7:13 37:4
 48:15
1301 1:13
14 20:25
14% 36:9
159 20:7
15th 49:9
16 21:5
164 36:9,10
193 20:19
1994 53:5

2

2 2:10 3:14 37:6
 44:3
2,354 19:9
2:00 36:19,19
20 21:5
200,000 28:2,4
2001 58:20
2008 52:18
2016 1:10 4:1,8
 52:25 59:1
208 19:9
21 52:18
22 39:1
22nd 12:18
24 66:1
243 19:19
260 19:10
27 4:8
28 52:25

3

3 1:10 2:6 3:16
 4:1
3:00 1:10
30 6:10
30351 36:18
313 23:15,15
319 20:17
31st 19:20
34 19:20 20:12

36 21:6
36% 36:10
367 19:13
380 36:8
3rd 59:21

4

4 2:2 3:2
4:00 37:5
4:26 66:16
40 6:1 25:24
41 20:13
4538 53:1
48207 58:21
48210 1:14
48221 59:23

5

5 2:4
5:00 48:14
50 20:8
509 19:10
52 19:10
530 19:18
58% 36:7
596-2145 23:15
 23:15

6

6 2:5 22:18
 48:10
6:00 40:12
6:30 58:18
635 20:17

7

7 2:3 3:18 20:12
 48:9
7:00 59:20,21
 60:8
71 6:18
767 1:13

8

8 52:25 59:1
8:00 40:12
893 60:9
8930 59:22

9

9:00 36:19,19
910 65:1

92 36:7